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Chief Executive Officer's Report for the year ended 31 March 2020

Financial Highlights

Revenue increase of 7% to $13.16 million {2019: $12.32 million). Excluding Mirada Connect (sold in July 2019),
revenue increased 13% to $12.96 million (2019: $11.49 million).

Positive adjusted EBITDA (as defined in Note 8) increased 207% to $2.50 million (2019: $0.81 millior}.

Gross profit increased 9% 1o $12.48 million (2019: £11.47 million).

Mirada Connect Lid sold in July 2019 for £2.12m {cquivalent to $2.61m) providing a onc-off net gain of S1.7m.

Net prolit increased (o S0.59 million (2019 loss of $3.11 million).
Net debt at 31 March 2020 increased to $5.05 million (2019: $4.86 million). See note 20 for further details.
New €1.30 million credit facility granted by Leasa Spain, S.L.U.

Operational Highlights

Successful development of Mirada's Android TV custom launcher. resulting from close collaboration with Google
and izzi Telecom. This will increase Mirada's pipeline by adding Android TV projects.
Integration of Netflix within Mirada's [ris multisereen product and deployment in izzi Telecom's pay TV platform.

Dieployment of Iris multiscreen licences over new segments of subscribers at izzi Telecom, reaching 2.8 million
STBs (Set-Top-Boxes) installed by March 2020.

Contract win with Plataforma Multimedia de Operadores in Spain in September 2019, with potential to become
Mirada's largest Europeun deployment to date.

Successful transition to remote working due to COVID-19 without operational disruption.

Overview

We present the Group's financial results for the year ended 31 March 2020. The year ended during a global pandemic, which
is still with us today and continues to have devastating effects across the world. Our thoughts and prayers are with all those
affected.

For Mirada, cven discounting the onc-ofT eflect of the disposal of the non-core parking payment activitics of Mirada
Connect. last year saw a significant improvement financially. operationally, and commercially. Despite having incurred an
operating loss o $1.306m (2019: $2.91m), the Company's performance has dramatically improved over the past 12 months,
with remarkable growth in adjusted EBITDA. Operationally, the Group has been able to augment itself to fully deploy its
flagship [ris solution across different markets. Commercially, Mirada has benefited from the references provided by its prior
successtul deployments, which have reinforced the Group's presence and credibility in the market.

The main highlights for the vear were Lhe integration with Netflix, our new contract win with PMO (Plalaforma Multimedia
de Operadores) in Spain, and the sale of Mirada C'onnect, among others, These provide further proof of the quality of our
solution and are important steps forward in achieving a greater market footprint and solid tinancial stability. [n addition, we
have a growing proportion of recurrent revenues from present customers, and confidence that our operational skills will
enable us to continue to deliver for our customers. We therefore view the year ahead with cautious optimism, despite the
uncertainties of the present health and economic environment.

Trading Review

This was the first year the Group's sole focus was on its main area of business, the Digital TV sector. In July, the mobile
payments for parking division, Mirada Connect. wus acquired by PayByFPhone, a subsidiary of Volkswagen Financial
Services, for a consideration of £2.12 million, representing a one-off gain in profit of approximately $1.7 million for the
Group. This was an important and positive development for the Company. allowing it to reinforce the balance sheet and to
focus the management on the core Digital TV business. Mirada's main product, the Iris platform. continued to gain traction
across its installed customer base and the Company was successful in winning new customers during the year. The Company
has continucd deploying its business model, to beacfit from the growth of its customers, and we are pleased to sce how our
customer's subscriber bases using Mirada's products continue to grow.

b
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Within our largest customer, 1zz1 telecom, based in Mexico, the use of our technology continues to grow rapidly. with more
than 2.8 million Linux-based set-top boxes (STBs) deployed at the end of the fiscal year in approximately 1.5 million
heuseholds. Significantly, more than | million households are now using izzi's over-the-top {OTT) product {based on mobile
devices and web browsers) supplied by Mirada. While the customer adoption of Mirada's products remains high, there is still
a large part of izzi's installed base to cover, as it has in excess of 4.2 million pay TV customers, representing more than 8
million STBs, and our expectation is that nearly two thirds of the installed base will still need to be replaced with Mirada's
technology.

During the year. Mirada has also been focused on deploying the next-generation service at izzi, based on Android TV
technology, which is likely te become the largest Google-based sct-top box depleyment in the Americas to date.

Regarding ATN International, our Atlanta-based customer with a footprint in the Caribbean and mainland US, we are happy
to have delivered our solution in their Bermuda cable network, One Communications, where our solution now covers the
vast majority of households. Mirada is now focused on the deployment in Viya, ATN InternationalsUS Virgin Islands
network, which will launch our produet in the next few weeks.

Regarding Digital TV Edmund, in Bolivia, the customer is slowly solving internal technical problems that delayed the
deployment of cur solution, and we foresee those being resolved in the next few months. In the meantime, we continue
providing support to their operations while they work to fully deploy their pay TV service. Within this customer we are glad
to announce the first certifications of our Smart TV technology and our Roku based services.

We are also happy to report a much larger than expected adaption of Iris in SkyTel, our Mengolian customer, Our
cxpeclation was o have less than 10,000 of their customers subseribe Lo our services in the first year of operaiion. However,
by the end of March, in less than nine months. the customer was providing our technelogy to more than 280,000 subscribers,
and our mobile applications in Android and 108 were both number one [or the whole country in the Google Play and Apple
Store services.

We secured a new customer in September. Plataforma Multimedia de Operadores (PMOY), in Spain, which, under the “Zapi”
brand, aggregates a substantial number of subscribers across multiple independent telecommunication suppliers in the
country, We have been working hard to finalise the integration activities since the contract win and, with integration and
deployment timelines improving with each new customer we win, we hope to launch commercially in the next few weeks.
Zapi has the potential to reach hundreds of thousands of customers in Spain, becoming cur largest deployment of lris in
Europe to date.

The cntire Group was able to transition to complete remote working practices at the beginning of March due to the outbreak
of COVID-19, and we are satisfied to note that, more than three months into this new scenario, operations remain perfectly
normal with no impact on our capability to deliver our products and scrvices. Our customers, which arc mostly
telecommunications providers of TV services, have become even more invaluable to consumers and have experienced a
unprecedented inercase of ncarly 25% in lincar TV consumplion and more than 40% for video on-demand (Vo)
consumption. In addition, broadband usage has increased over 30% in our customers' networks. This increase in our
customers' activities has made our visibility of revenues for the coming year much higher at this stage than in any other prior
year. This lends us confidence in our abilities to continue our business without disruption over the coming months.

Our pipeline also remaing strong, despite the difficult confinement and uncertain situation imposed by the COVID-19
pandemic, although we are conscious that, until the pandemic resides, there could be delays in decisions from new
customers. Although our customers, and the sector at large, are currently benefiting from the sharp rise in demand for
audiovisual and connectivity services, it is still too early to precict if the potential reduction in the purchasing power of
consumers will have an overall negative impact in the clco and pay TV business.

As part of our Saa8 strategy, Mirada has been able to agree long term contracts with key customers, with an increasing
recurrent revenue component. This allows our customers to benefit from continuous praduct Improvement and aligns their
long-term growth objectives to ours, as we benefit from growth in their subscriber numbers. While it usually means a higher
level of investment during the deployment stage, which is not being capitalised, it also provides Mirada with an improved
medium and long-term return on investment. The efforts made during prior years on winning and deploying customers are
now providing a higher level of recurrent revenue as well as visibility over future revenues. This is ultimately increasing our
total turnover, reducing operational losses and allowing the Group to steadily approach a stage of sustained profitability.
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The Group continues to deliver high quality products for the audiovisual sector, and we are delighted with the growing
relevance Mirada is enjoying in the market. There has been a substantial improvement in our EBITDA level, and the Board
continues to believe that the Company is close to a point of sustained profitability. In these difficult times we are grateful to
be working in a business that can continue providing quality experiences to millions of users, and we would like to express
our sincere gratitude to our fantastic group of employees, customers. suppliers, partners and investors.

Financial Overview

Revenue grew to $13.16 million (2019: $12.32 million). a 7% year-on-year incrcase. Excluding Mirada Conncet, which was
sold in July 2019, revenue grew to $12.96 million (2019: 11.49 million}, a 13% year-on-year increase. Growth in
development revenue was $1.47million to reach $7.98 million for the year, driven by the customisation of the Android TV
custom launcher for izzi Telecom.

Gross profit grew to $12.48 million (2019: $11.46 million} and operating losses reduced to S1.36 million (2019: 52.91
million). Staff Costs decreased by $0.46 million to $6.79 million {2019: $7.25 million) and other administrative expenses
decreased by $0.20 million to $3.20 million (2019: $3.40 million). The improvement in revenues and the reduction in costs
led to an adjusted EBITDA {as defined in Note 8) of S2.5¢ million (2019: S0.81 million). There is a tax credit recognised in
the current period of $0.31 million (2019: $0.18 million) as a result of Mirada Iberia's research and innovation tax
deductions. As a result, the net impact was the achievement of net profit for the year of S0.59 million (2019: loss of 83,11
million).

Net Debt increased to $5.05 million (2019: $4.86 million). Long term interest-bearing loans and borrowings increased by
40% to $2.40 million (2019: $1.72 millien} and short term borrowings and related party loans and interest deercased to
$2.85 million (2019: $3.26 million) - see note 20 for further details. Trade receivables increased from $1.89 million to $1.99
million, duc to increased revenves and activity at the ¢nd of the fiscal year, A new €1.30 million credit facility was granted
by Leasa Spain, S.L.U., owned by Mr. Ernesto Luis Tinajero Flores, who also owns 87.21% of the voting rights of Mirada

ple.
Other intangible assets have increased by $1.78 million, mainly due to the development of our custom launcher for Android
TV.

I'he Group generated S1.80 million of cash in eperating activities n the year (2019: cash used in operating activities of $1.24
million}, received $2.61 million from the disposal of Mirada Conngct and spent a further $4.38 million (2019: $2.07 million)
in investing activities. The operating and investing cash flows were funded by the movement in net debt explained above.
This resulted in an increase in cash and cash equivalents of $0.06 million.

The General Meeting held on 10 September 2019 approved a 100 to | share consolidation. The total outstanding share
options on 9 Scptember 2019 was 4,148,316 (4,697,166 at 30 September 2018). Therefere, as of 31 March 2020, the total
outstanding share options was 41.483.

The Company has adopted the following new accounting standards with effect from 1 April 2019;
IFRS 16- Leases
IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments
Amendments to IFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation
Amendments to TAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures
Amendments to LAS 19 Employee Benefits

Annual Improvements te IFRS Standards 2015-2017 Cycle

See note 3 to the financial statements for further information on the new [FRS standards.
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Current Trading and Outlook

Mirada is focused on the Digital TV segment and is increasing its market reach, with a growing healthy pipeling of
uppurtunities as a result of the successtul deployment and a wide appraisal of its Iris multi-platform product for both Linux
and Android TV sclutions, and the integration of Netflix, The Company is now considered to be a top-end solution for
potential customers, with a tlexible model that allows audiovisual companies of any size to provide a competitive offering
for their subscribers.

Despile the uncertain impact o COVID-1Y9, Mirada's [inancial position is continuously improving, reinforced by the support
of its largest shareholder. ‘T'ogether, these factors have led to an improved commercial performance, with participation in
multiple deals, which, combined with the growing pipeline, provides confidence in the Company's ability lo sccure more
contract wins in the coming years.

José-Luis ¥azquez

Chief Executive Officer

15th July 2020
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Business model

The Company's main activity is the provision of software for the Digital TV market (“Digital TV segment), after the
disposal in July 2019 of Mirada Connect, the “Mobile payment™ segment, which previously represented 7% of the
revenves of the Group. Our major custormners are Digital TV platforms, compesed mainly of Pay TV service providers. We
provide the technology needed to facilitate the final user's interaction with the devices they provide, including digital TV
decoders (set-top boxes), tablets, smariphones, computers, game conseles end smart Tvs. Our major products arc our
navigational software proposition, Iris. including our Inspire user interface, and X-player. our broadcasting synchronisation
technology.

Our customers need the services of a user interface (“UI”) provider such as Mirada when creating a new Digital TV
service or replacingfupgrading an cxisting one. The Ul provider interacts with the deviee vendor (in the case of sct-lop
boxes), the encryption technology vendor {Cenditional Access (“CA™) vendor) for the protection of content. and the
customer systems (billing and provisioning systems).

The Group tends to interact with the customer in the early stages of their decision-making process and help in the selection
of the proper ecosystem for their Digital TV solution. Our expertise is widely recognised in the industry. and we provide a
value that goes beyond our actual Ul propesition. Asice from the professional services related to deployment, support and
maintenance, our licencing model varies depending on the size of the customer, from oneg-off fees per household for the
product as it is, to recurrent revenues for a Software as a Service (“SaaS™) model. The Group also historically provided
cashless payment solutions to car park operators through a revenue-share agreement (Mebile payment segment) but, as set
out above, this division was divested during the year. Managed services such as quality assurance on functionality add-ons
to platforms are also provided to customers.

Strategy

The Group's strategy is to extend its presence in the Digital TV markets, focusing on those markets with higher potential
growth rates, for example the Latin America, Eastern Europe and Scuth East Asia markets. The aim is to increase the
number of customers being charged subscriber-based licence fees, as these revenues command higher margins and, so long
as the customer's subscriber base keeps growing, Mirada will continue to carn licence fees even from projects which were
completed several years previously.

Reference deployments (defined as key deployments used as a reference to allract potential customers} are very important
in this market, and winning reference contracts has been and remains an integral part of our strategy. The Group will need
o conlinue invesling in research and development in order (o provide the required functionalities in its products (o satisfy
the cutting-edge demands of customers. while maintaining a fair balance between potential growth and profitability. These
include costs incurred lowards developing new functionalily such as an increased presence in the Cloud, enhanced search,
recommendation and personalisation functionalities, and integration with more content providers, chipsets and device
manufacturers. Our continued investment in Iris is essential in ensuring a proper implementation of this strategy.

Development, perfermance and position of business

Development. performance and position of our business have been discussed in the CEO report. with key items on pages 2
and 3,

Principal risks and uncertainties

The key business risks alfeeting the Group are set out below. All these risks are consistent and stable compared with the
prior year, with the addition of COVID-19,
Dependence on people

The Group recognises the value of the commitment of its key management nersonnel and is conscious that it must keep
appropriate reward systems, both financial and motivational, in place to minimise this arca of risk. Our share
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option scheme and investment in training are examples of this. Rotation of key management. considered to be the main
measure of risk, is very low as there have been no changes in the key execurive management team in the last five years,
except for a change in the Finance Director in November 2015, The Group invests 4 significant amount of resources to
identify market practices in our sector and to be up to date on human resources policies, including employment benefits,
remote working and continued internal and external training for our employees.

Digital TV and Broadcast markefs

The scetors in which the Group operates may undergo rapid and unexpected changes. It is possible, therelore, that
competitors will develop products that are similar to those of the Group, or its technology may become obsolzte or less
effective. The Group's suceess depends upon its ability o enhance its products and technologies and develop and introduce
new products and features that meet changing custemer requirements and incorporate technological advances on a timely
and cosl-effective basis. As a result, the Group continues (o invest significantly in new product and product improvements,
research and develapment. totzling this year circa 30% of our revenues, well above market standards. As most of our
market growth is related to Subscription Video on Demand (SvoDY) and OTT services. we have been able to improve our
OTT product line end integrate our services with Netflix at our largest customer, izzi Telecom, paving the way for
potential future integration m present and future custorers.

Information technology

Data security. loss or corruption of data, and business continuity pose inherent risks for the Group leading to a loss of
customer confidence in the Group being able to deliver their requirements. To mitigate this risk, the Group invests in, and
keeps under review, formal data security and business continuity policies. The Group maintain both local and cloud-based
backups and regularly review plans on how to improve data management,

Intellectual property

There arc certain markets in which there could be instances of disputes regarding intcllectual property invelving
technology companies, including the Digital TV market. So far no disputes have been raised and the Company does not
cnvisage any risks 1o its own intellectual property. While the Group internally gencrates its products and software and
strongly believes that it has not infringed any third-party intellectual property, management do recognise that due to the
nature of the technology market there will always be a risk of other corporations potentially making claims regarding
intellectual property:patent infringements.

Ligaidity Risk

Liquidity risk is managed through the assessment of short. medium and long term cashflow forecasts to ensure the
adequacy of funding in order to meet the Group's working capital requirements, Cash and cash flow forecasts are regularly
reviewed by the Executive Directors and the Group constantly monitors these to ensure, among other scenarios, that the
Group is able to meet its liabilities as they fall due, Where a shortfall in funding is identified the Company will look to
meet this shortfall through a variety of funding options including but not limited to the issuing of new equity. The
Company rclics en the support of its sharcholders and has been able to scoure new equity and loan facilitics during prior
years from its main shareholder. This area is considered further in the report of the directors and the accounting policies
under ‘Going concern'.

Custonter concentration

Revenues from the main customer represent 72% of the total turnover. The Company has been reducing this ‘evel from
prior years (FY 19: 79%), and it has a focus on generating business with new customers. Revenue from customers outside
the main client increased by 86% to $3.66m in FY20 from $1.79m in FY 19,

Brexit

The UK's exit from the European Union (EUY creates uncertainty that may impact the performance of our business.

The potential impact includes:

- A continued deterioraticn in customer sentiment.

- Operational complexity and cest due to restrictions on the movement of goods and stricter border controls.
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- Costs passcd through [rorn our supplicrs.

- Continuity of supply and supplier viability.

- Import and export duties.

- Additional regulatory responsibilities and costs.

- Increased complexity and cost in our international operations.

Specific mitigation plans have been implemented by Mirada in order to reduce the potential negative impact on its
operational activity and Financial Statements. In particular, the Company reduced its payroll based m the UK through the
divestment of Mirada Connect Ltd on 4th July 2019 and the closure of its Exeter office on 30th September 2019,

COVID-19

As noted in the CEO's report, the Group 1s continuously monitoring the effects of the COVID-19 pandemic across the
markets in which it operates. This includes regular meetings of the Management Tzam assessing the situation and
reflecting on new policies developed by relevant autheritics. Remote working was mandatory for all employees since the
beginning of March, which has not had a material operational or financial impact on the Group to the date of this report.

The main identificd risk factors associaied with the pandemic are the following:

. Health issues related to our employees and their capability to perform their duties: the Group considers that remote
waorking will reduce the potential risk of contagion to our employees, although there is always a risk and we have
been identifying those who would have a higher risk and implementing redundancy processes to prevent
disruptions,

. Psychological effects and morale erosion: a continued period of isclation and remote working could have the
de-motivaticnal effect und reduce the sense of belonging of the employees. The Company has increased regular
meetings between the departments, has a daily Management meeting to coordinate activities, and has monthly
global meetings to try to reduce this risk.

. Economic impact: although our customers have not expericnced yet a reduction of their activities due to the
pandemic potential economic impact, we cannot discard that the reduction of purchasing power in their markets
could have an efleet on the level of subseriptions and collections. The Group has sucecsslully progressed (o sceure
early purchase orders from its main customer and secured extra liquidity in the form of additional bank loans and
extension of loan agreements, as delailed in the CEQ's report.

. Costs management: even though the Company has decided to keep all the employees and their know-how, all other
non-gssential costs have been reviewed and reduced when possible,

Section 172 statement

From 1 January 2019, legislation was introduced requiring companies to include a statement pursuant to section 172 of the
Companies Act 2006.

The Bourd recognises the importance of the Group's wider stakeholders when performing their duties under Section 172(1}
of the Companies Act and their duties to act in the way they consider, in good faith, would be most likely to promote the
success of the company for the benefit of its members as a whole. and in doing so have regard (among other matters) to:

. the likely consequences of any decigion in the long term,

. the impact of his decisions in the value for shareholders,

. the interests of the company's employees.,

. the need to foster the company's business relationships with suppliers, customers and partners,
. the impact of the company’s operations on the community and the environment,
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. the desirability of the company maintaining a reputation for high standards of business conduct, and

. the need to act fairly as between members of the company.

The Board considers that all their decisions are taken with the long-term in mind, understanding that these decisions need
to regard the interests of the Company's sharcholders, employees, its relationships with suppliers, customers, partners, the
communities and the environment in which 1t operates. It 18 the view of the Board that these requirements are addressed in
the Corporate Governance  Statement, which can  be found on the company's website at
www.mirada.tv/investors/corporate-governance.

For the purpose of this statement detailed descriptions of the decisions taken are limited to those of strategic importance.
The Board believes thal three decisions taken during ihe year fall into this category and were made with full consideration
of both internal and external stakeholders:

. The decision to dispose Mirada Connect Ltd as a subsidiary of the Group. The Board considered the views of both
the internal and external stakeholders on this matter before entering formal discussions with the buver, and it was
defined a preliminary valuation that would be considered fair and reasonable. The Board also consulted advisers
and stakeholders about the proper procedures to ensure a proper transition of the employees of the subsidiary to
their new status, and developed procedures for the alignment of the management of the Group, allowing the
remaining teamn to focus on the core activities of the Company and concentrate cn long-term value generation for
all stakchelders.

. The deeision to proposce cancellation of share premium, which was motivated by the share valuc pereeplion, the
aim to increase share trading volumes and the potential reduction of share price volatility. Both internal and
cxternal stakcholders were consulted, and the wselution was propesed o sharcholders at a General Mecting on 10
September 2019.

. The decision to migrate the Iris product to Android TV technology, which has a major impact on the Company
roadmap and is cssential to ensure the prescnee of the Group in the new generation set-top boxes opportunitics.
This project, directly and indirectly, concentrated the majority of the product investment for the fiscal year, and it
was crucial to be present in the main customer now gencration scrvice proposition. The project involved
conversations with advisers, partners, sharcholders and employees, a caretul analysis of the potential opportunities
in the market, the investment to be made and the impact on ecmployces, partners and present and [uture customers,
as well as the long-term value for all stakeholders.

Approval
This strategic report was approved in behalf of the Board on 15th July 2020 and signed on its behalf.

José-Luis Vazquez
Chief Executive Officer
15th July 2020
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Review of business, future developments and key performance indicators

Reviews of the business, its results, future direction and key performance indicators are included in the Chief Executive
Officer's Report and Strategic Report on pages 2 to 9.

Dividends

No dividend is declared in respect of the year (2019: $nil).
Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group's activities expose it to a number of financial risks including capital risk, credit risk, foreign currency exchange
risk, interest rate risk and liquidity risk. The management of financial risk is governed by the Group's policies approved by
the board of directors, which provide writlen principles (0 manage these risks. See nole 22 Tor further details on the
Group's financial instruments.

Guoing concern

These financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis. The Directors have reviewed the Company and
Group's going concern position taking account of its current business activities, budgeted performance and the factors
likely to affect its future development, which are set out in this Annual report, and include the Group's objectives, policies
and processes for managing its capital, its [nancial risk management objectives, its exposure Lo credit and liquidily risks
and the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic.

Ag at 31 March 2020, the Group had cash and cash equivalents of $0.19m (2019: $0.12m), had net current assets of
$0.29m {2019: net current liabilitics of $.70m) and nect asscls of $10.55m (2019 $9.98m. ). In the year ended 31 March
2020, the Group generated net cash from operating activities of $1.80m (2019; net cash used in operating activities
$1.24m), realised a profit for the year of $0.59m (2019: a loss of $3.11m). Subscquent to the year end, the Dircctors are
pleased to announce that they have secured the following additional funding for the business:

. €1.6m of new loans obtained between April 2020 and June 2020 from banks with 80% of these loans gnaranteed
by the Spanish government under the COVID-19 relief scheme.

. An cxtension 1o the term of its €1.30 million credit lacility has been granted by Leasa Spain. S.L.U. The term of
the Facility has been extended by 12 months and now expires on 30 November 2021.

‘The Directors have prepared dstailed cash tlow forecasts tor the period to at least 31 December 2021. The Directors
regularly review the detailed lorecasts of sales, cosls and cash (lows. The assumptions undetlying the lorceasts arce
challenged. varied and tested to establish the likelihood of a range of possible outcomes, including reasonable cash flow
sensitivitics. The expecled figures are carefully monitored against actual cutcomes cach month and variances are
highlighted and discussed at Board level. However, the uncertain impact of COVID-19 introduces more risks and
uncertamty into this year's review. The Group has seen limited impact ol COVID-19 on the operational capability of the
business. From a technology point of view, the Group is also offering and developing the most advanced features in the
market, providing services lo a growing subscriber base in our core markets. To this end a base case cash flow lorecast
has been prepared which takes into account the following key assumptions:

. The continued availability of the Group's invoice discounting facility throughout the foreseeable future.

. An average revenue growth of 13% in the foreseeable future, which Directors believe, comprise of revenue that is
substantially already secured under signed contracts.

. Additional net funding of US$1.4m from lenders
. An expected receipt of US$0.3m of Research and Development tax credit in March 2021 from Spanish tax
authorities.

The Dirgctors have also considered a number of downside scenarios, including a scenario where all revenue growth from
new customers is removed. a scenario where no further funding is obtained in the period and a reverse stress test. The
purpose of the reverse stress test for the Group is to test at what point the cash facilitics would be fully utilised if the
assumptions in the Director’s base case forecasts are altered. This reverse stress test includes both a removal of all revenue
growth from new customers and a reduction of contracted revenue from existing customers for the forecast period, resulting
in an overall reduction of revenue of ¢.20%, as well as the removal of any potential future funding and the receipt of the
UUS$0.3m Research and Development tax credits anticipated. In the event that

10
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the performance of the Group is nat in line with the projections, and more akin to one of our downside scenarios, including
the worst case scenario, action will be taken by management immediately to address any potential cash shortfall for the
foreseeable future. The actiens that could be taken by the Directors include both a review and restructuring of
employment related costs, including the deferral of any potential bonuses due to employses. These measures alone could
save at least $1.0m in operating costs and therefore cash flows. Further. the Directors could also negotiate access to other
sources of finances from our lenders. Given the Director's current relationship with lenders and taeir recent success in
negotiations with these financial institutions, whilst there are no binding agreements currently in place, negotiations are in
very advanced stages for additional funding. Therefore, they Directors are confident that any additional funding required
would be obtained.

Whilst the cash flow forecasts prepared have been sensitised to consider a number of downside scenarios, including the
reverse stress test, the Directors are pleased to note that the post year end performance of the Group has exceeded the
original forecast for April and May 2020. Therefore demonstrating that the Group has not suffered negatively from the
impact of COVID-19 and is in & strong place to meet the base case forecasts.

Overall, the sensitised cash tlow forecasts demonstrate that the Group will be able to pay 1ts debts as they tall due for the
period to at least 31 December 2021. The Directors are, therefore, satisfied that the financial statements should be prepared
on the going concern basis.

See note 4 to the financial statements for further information on going concern.
Dircectors’ and officers’ indemnity insurance
The Group has taken out an insurance policy to indemnify the Directors and officers of the company and its subsidiaries in

respect of certain liabilities which may attach to them in their capacity as directors or officers of the Group, so far as
permitted by law. This policy remained in force throughout the yesr and remains in place at the date of this report.

Research and Development activities

The Greup continues its development program of softwure for the Digital TV market including the research and
development of new products and enhancements to existing products. The Directors consider the investment in research
and development to be fundamental to the success of the business in the future.

Corporate Governance

The Board decided to update its current Corporate Governance policy and adopt the QCA Corporate Governance Code
(April 2018) from 2é September 2018, and there have not been any changes since then. Details of the Company's corporate
governance policies and compliance are available on the Mirada website:
https:/fwww. mirada.tv/investors/corporate-governance:.

Compliance with the Quoted Companies Altiance Corporate Governance Code

The Quated Companies Alliance has published a corporate governance code which includes a standard of minimum best
practice for AIM companies and recommendalions for reporting corporale governance matters.

Chairmarn's Corporate Governaiice Statemeint

As a Chairman. my role is to manage the Board in the best interests of our stakeholders, to ensure that cur shareholders'
views arc communicaied o the Board and to be responsible for cnsuring the Board's integrity and cffectiveness. |
recognise that my role also involves my responsibility over the correct implementation of the QCA Corporate Governance

Code inlo Mirada's corporate governance practices.

The Company is managed by the Board of Directors, and it is the Board's job to ensure that the Mirada group is managed
for the long-term benefit of all shareholders, with effective and efficient decision-making. Corporate governance is an
impaortant part of that job, reducing risk and adding value to our business.

In addition to each of the 10 principles listed turther below, the following provides an overview of how the Company
applies the QCA Corporate Governance Code, in order to support the Company's medium to long-term success.

The Board comprises three Executive and two independent non-Executive Directors. The Board considers, after careful
review, that the non-Exccutive Directors bring an independent judgement to bear notwithstanding their
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length of service und are therefore both considered independent. The Board has decided to adopt voluntarily the practice
that ong third of the Directors stand for re-glection on an annual basis,

1, Francis Coles, the non-Executive Chairman, am responsible for the running of the Board and corporate governance.
José-Luis Vazquez, the Chief Executive, hus executive responsibility for running the Group's business and implementing
Group strategy. The Board mests at least four times per year and has a formal schedule of matters reserved to it. It is
responsible for overall Group strategy, approval of major capital expenditure projects. approval of the annual and interim
results, annual budgets and Board structure. Tt monitors the exposure to key business risks and reviews the strategic
direction of all trading subsidiaries, their annual budgets, their performance in relation to those budgets and their capital
expenditure. The Board delegates day-te-day responsibility for managing the busingss to the Executive Directors and the
senior management team.

The Board believes that, given its size, there is sufficient opportunity for shareholders to raise any concerns they may have
with the non-Executive Chairman, the Chief Executive. the Group Finance Director and the other Dirzctors.

Qur valucs are based on two comcerstones: our customers and our ernployees. The Board believes this 1s vital for crealing a
sustainable, growing business and is a key responsibility of the Group. This culture supports the Company's objectives to
grow the business through acquiring and retaining customers by atlending 1o their needs from the very beginning of the
sales process until successful delivery and during ongeing services provision and support. The Company recognises its
employees as a key driver of success and considers it erucial 10 recruit and retain the right people with the appropriate set
of skills and values. Corporate governance is an important part of that job, red.icing risk and adding value to our business.

Francis Coles, Chairman
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The QCA Corporate Governance Code sets out ten principles which should be applied. These are listed below together
with a short explanation of how the Group applies each of the principles:

1. Estoblish a strafegy and husiness model which promote long-iernt value Jor shareholders:

The Mirada Group strategy is focused around four key areas: market, product, sales, and business model. as explained
fully within the Strategic Report section of our Report and Annual Accounts.

The Group's strategy is to extend its presence in the Digital TV markets, focusing on those with high potential growth
rates, for example the Latin American, Eastern Europe and South East Asian markets. The aim is to increase the number of
customers being charged subscriber-based licence fees, as these revenues command higher margins and, as long as the
customer's subscriber base is growing, Mirada will continue to earn licence fees even from projects completed several
years previously.

The key challenges to the business and how these are mitigated are detailed in the Strategic Report.

2.Seek to understand and meet shareholder needs and expectations:

The Mirada Group cncourages two-way communication with both its instilutional and private inveslors and responds
quickly to all queries received. The CEO talks regularly with the Group's major shareholders and ensures that their views
are commnunicated {ully 1o the Board.

The Board recognises the AGM and the GMs as important opportunities to meet private shareholders. The Directors are
available to listen to the views of sharcholders informally immediately following these mectings, The Group has set up a
dedicated email address for all investor queries. The Board has also utilised digits] technology to present virtually to
current and prospective investors.
Where voting decisions are not in line with the Company's expectations, the Board will engage with those sharcholders to
understand and address any issues.

3. Take into account wider stakeholder and social responsibilities and theiv implications for long-term success:

The Mirada Group has identified the following key stakeholders and decided on implementing the following actions to
cover their needs, interests and expectations:

o Cmployees - company meetings, CEO letters, work council

o Customers - corporate website, social media, international trade fairs, personal meetings, high- and
low-level bilateral meetings

o Sales Parlners - internal blog, weekly industry press reviews, weekly follow-up conferences, marketing
material

o Shareholders - see above

o Technological Partners - corporate website, social media, international trade fairs, personal meetings,
high- and low-level bilateral meetings

o Compliance advisors - periodic conference calls, advice request when applicable
o Banks - periedic meetings

Mirada identifies its employees as its key asset and puts a considerable amount of effort into ensuring employee
satisfaction by such measures as improving work-life balance, providing fringe benefits, tcam building activitics and many
more.

4. Embed effective risk management, considering both opporiunitics and threats, throughout the organisation:

The Board considers risk to the business at every Board meeting {at least one meeting is held per quarter) and the risk
register is updated at cach meciing. The Company [ormally reviews and documents the principal risks o the busincss al
least annually.
Both the Board and senior managers are responsible for reviewing and evaluating risk and the Executive Directers meet at
lcast monthly to review ongoing trading perlormance, discuss budgets and forecasts and new risks associated with ongoing
trading. This process allows the Board to gain assurance that the risk management and related control systems in place are
clfeetive.
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5. Maintain the board as a well-functioning, balanced team led by the chair:

The Company is controlled by the Board of Directors. Francis Coles, the Non-executive Chairman, is responsible for the
running of the Board and José Luis Vazquez, the Chief Cxecutive, has executive responsibility for running the Group's

business and implementing Group strategy. Directors attend one Board Meeting per quarter.

A summary ol Board meetings altended by current Direelors in the twelve months to 31 March 2020 1s sel out below:

Francis Jose Luis Matthew Jose Francisco Gionzalo
Coles Vazquez Peter Earl Gozalbo Babio
11 Jun 2619
04 Jul 2019
09 Sep 2019
04 Dec 2019
24 Mar 2020

All Directors receive regular and timely information about the Group's operational and financial performance. Relevant
information is circulated to the Directors in advance of meetings. In addition, minutes of the meetings of the Directors are
circulated to the Group Board of Directors. All Directors are able to take independent professional advice in the

furtherance of their duties, if necessary, at the Company's expense.

The Board compriscs theee Exccutive Directors and two Non-Exceutive Dircetors. All Exceulives Directors work on a
full-time basis and the Non-Executive Director's service agreements set out expected time commitments. All Directors

recognise that a certain time of inereased aclivity. the preparation and attendance at meetings will increase. The Board
considers that all Non- executive Directors bring an independent judgement to bear notwithstanding the varying lengths of’

service.
The Directors of Mirada (the "Directors™} have the following experience and skills:
Francis Coles

Non-Executive Chairman

Frances Coles has nearly 40 years of experience in corporate finance, He was a founder director of corporate
finance advisory boutique New Boathouse Capital and later served as a director of AIM listed merchant bank
Quayle Munre following its aquisit:on of New Boathouse Capital in 2007, Prior to that, Francis was a director of
Baring Brothers and subsequently Santander luvestmenl where his respousibilities included debtl and equily
fundraisings and merger and acquisition activities in the European and Latin American markets.

José Luis Vazquez
Chief Executive Officer

José L. Vazquez 1s CEO and Co-Founder of Fresh, a leading interactive TV player in the Spanish market. He holds
a degree in Advanced Telecommunication Engineering (UPM) and an MBA (IESE). He has more than 15 years of
experience in Telecommunication and Interactivity markets. where he is an skilled professional. He founded Fresh
in year 2000 being the CT( and became the CEO of the company in 2004, José is one of the leading figures in the
Hispanic Digital TV platforms markets.

Gonzalo Babio

Chief Financial Officer

Gonzalo Babio has a broad experience in media and technelogy sectors. His professional career includes three
years working at Arthur Andersen as an auditor, ten vears at Electronic Arts as Finance Director working in
Madrid. Lisbon, Sao Paulo, Lyon and London, and ten vears as Finance Director for The Walt Disney Company
[beria in Madrid. He has a degree in Business Administration from the Universidad de Deusto in Bilbao, an EMBA
from 1ESE Business School in Madrid and a PED from IMD in Lausanne.
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José Francisco Gozalbo Sidro
Chief Technology Ofticer

Jos¢ joined Mirada as Chicf Technology Officer in March 2008, bringing over 18 years of experienee in software
development companies. [n this role he has been responsible for software development, quality assurance, R&D
and presales departments. He has a special focus on the Latin America region and has helped to build relationships
with big telecoms partners that have led to multiple deployments of Mirada's products. Prior to joining Mirada,
Jos¢ was Chief Technology OfTicer at Fresh Interactive Technologics where he managed the deployment of
products and services worldwide, working with some of the key partnzrs in the Pay TV market.

Matthew Peter Earl
Non-Executive Director

Matthew has spent over 12 years working in the financial services sector primarily in Equity Capital Markets.
Matthew started his career with Royal Bank of Scotland plc as an economist before working at Investec ple.
Matthew then joined Charles Stanley Securities us an equity analyst in the support services sector, until he moved
to head up the business services research team at Matrix Group Limited in 2010, More recently he has become an
active investor in small and medium sized businesses.

The Audit Committee and the Remuneration and Nomination Comimittee meet formally at least twice a year. In the year
cnded 31 March 2020, Franeis Coles and Mathew Earl attended all mectings of the Avdit, Remuncration and Nomination
Committees.

6.Ensure that between them the divectors have the necessarv up-to-date experience, skills and capabilities:

The Nomination Committee of the Board oversees the hiring process and makes recommendations to the Board on all new
Board appointmenis.  Where new Board appeintments are considercd the scarch for candidates is condueted, and
appointments are made. on merit, against objective criteria. Whilst there is not currently a balance of genders on the Board,
the Company's Directors look to appeint individuals with complementary skills and experience to fulfil the Company's

strategy, regardless of gender. The Nomination Committee also considers succession planning.

The skills and experience of the Board are set out in their biographical details against principle 5 above. The Directors
bring a mixture of relevant seelor, public company and {inancial expericncee o the Board such that it has the capabilitics o
deliver the Company's strategy.

The dircctors keep their skillsets up to date by attending industry and gualification relevant seminars and training sessions.

The directors seek advice from their corporate advisers (including the Company's nominated adviser, lawyers and
accountants) as necessary.

7. Evaluate board performance based on clear and velevant objectives, seeking continuous improvement!

The Board carries out an evaluation of its perfermance annually, taking into account the Financial reperting Council's
Guidance on Board Effectiveness. The company has performed regular reviews of its Board composition. considering
whether each Diirector has the appropriate skills for the proper performance of their duties, The Board is satisfied that each
individual has the right balance of financial and market knowledge to understand the performance and prospects of the
business for the proper development of the Group,

All Directors undergo a performance evaluation before being proposed for re-clection to ensure that their performance is
and continues to be effective, that where appropriate they maintain their independence and that they are demonstrating
continued commitment to the rolc.

Appraisals are carried out each year with all Executive Directors.

All continuing Directors stand for re-election every three years.
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8. Promote a corporate culture that is based on ethical values and behaviours:

Ethical values and behaviours are one of the key elements of Board members' appraisals, It also forms an important part of
every employee's appraisal process, with a special focus on employees with direct contact with customers and vendors.
Company values are also included in the welcome package that every new employee receives upon jaining the company,
which 1s also available for everyone on the Intranet.

9 Maintain governance structures and processes thar are fit for purpose and support good decision-making by the board:

Our corporate governance statement on structure and processes is available on our corporate website, AIM Rule 26,
Corporate Governance scetion. Direel link available here: hitlps:/fwww.mirada.tv/investors/aim-rule-26/

1. Communicate how the Company is governed and is performing by maintaining a diclogue with shareholders and other
relevant stakeholders.

The Company encourages two-way communication with both its mstitutional and private imvestors and responds quickly to
all querics reecived. The CEO talks regularly with the Group's major sharcholders and ensures that their views are
communicated fully to the Board.

The Board recognizes the AGM and other GMs as important opportunities to meet private shareholders. The Directors are
available ta listen to the views of sharcholders informally, immediately following any General Meeting,

Directors

The directors who held oftice during the year are given below:
Executive directors

Mr José-Luis Vazquez Chief Executive Officer
Mr Jose Gozalbo
Mr Gonzale Babio

Non-executive direciors
Mr Francis Coles Non- Executive Chairman
Mr Matthew Earl

Events since the reporting date

On 11 March 2020, the World Health Organisation declared the coronavirus COVID-19 outbreak a pandemic. duc to its
fast spread around the World, atter impacting more than 150 countries. Most governments are taking constraining
mcasures (o comtain the spread, which include: isolation, conlinemeni, quarantine and restrictions to [rec movement ol
people, closure of public and private facilities, except for health and essential goods. border closures and substantial
reduction of air, sca, and land traflic.

This situation is affecting significantly the global economy, due to disruption or slowdown of supply chains and a
significant increase in economic uncertainty, as shown by an increase of volatility in the price of assers, exchange rates and
a decrease 1n long term interest rates.

At the date of issuance of this report it is not possible to make a reasonable estimation of the current and future
consequences of this crisis on the company. The Company's Management will evaluate the impact of the matters
previously described and those that could be identified in the future on the financial position of the Company.,

16




Mirada ple

Directors' Report for the year ended 31 March 2020

Auditors

Each of the persons who are directors at the date of approval of this report confirms that:

L. se far as the directors are aware, there is no relevant audit informatien of which the auditors are
unaware; and

)

the directors have taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as directors in order to make themselves aware
of any rclevant audit information and to cstaklish that the auditors arc aware of that information.

This confirmation is given and should be interpreted in accordance with the provisions of s418 of the Companies Act
206,

BDO LLP have expressed their willingness to continue in oftice as auditors and 4 resolution to reappeint them will be
proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

Approved by the Board of Directors and signed vn behalf ol the Board:

José-Luis Vazquez
Chicf Executive Officer
15th July 2020

17




Mirada ple

Audit Committee Report for the year ended 31 March 2020

1 am pleased to present the ceport on behalf of the Audit Committes.

The Committee is responsible for challenging the quality of internal and external control and for ensuring that the financial
performance of the Group is properly reported and reviewed. The Board considers that the Company is not currently of a
size to warrant the need for an internal audit function although the Board has put in place internal financial procedures to
cnsure close internal controls,

Committee Composition

‘The members of the Audit Committee are myself, Francis Coles, as Chair, and Matthew P. Larl both independent
non-executive directors. The Board is of the view that we have recent and relevant experience. Meetings are held on
average twice a vear. José Luis Vazquez (CEO). and Gonzale Babio {(Finunce Director), attend by invitation. [ report to
the Board following an Audit Committee meeting and minutes arg available te the Board,

Copumittee Duties

The main dutics of the Committee are sct out below:

. Reviewing and recemmending to the Board in relation to the appointment and removal of
the exlernal auditor.
. Recommending the external auditor's remuneration and terms of engagement.
. Reviewing the independence of the external auditors, the objectivity and the effectiveness ot the audit

process, taking into account relevant professienal and regulatory requirements.

. Reviewing and monitoring the exient of the non-audit work undertaken by the Group's external
auditor.

. Reviewing a wide range of financial matters including the annual and half year results.

. Monitoring the controls which ensure the integrity of the financial information reperted to the
shareholders.

In the financial year commencing on 1 April 2019, the Group applied the following new accounting standards:
IFRS 16- Leases
[FRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments
Amendments to [FRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation
Amendments to TAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures
Amendments to IAS 19 Employee Bencfits
Annual Improvements to [FRS Standards 2015-2017 Cycle
External anidiror

BDO was reappointed as the Group's auditor at the Annual General Meeting held on the 14th January 2020. The
Committee considers that its relationship with the auditor is working well and is satisfied with their effectiveness.

Francis Coles

Chair of the Audit Committee
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I am pleased to present the report on behalf of the Remuneration Committee,

The Committee decides the remuneration policy that applies to executive directors and senior management. The
Remuneration Committee meets as necessary in order to consider and set the annual remuneration for executive directors
and senior managers. having regard to personal performance and industry remuneration rates. In determining that policy, it
considers a number of factors including:

the basic salaries and henefits available to executive directors and senior management of comparable companies;

the need to attract and retain dircetors and others ol an appropriate calibre: and
the need to ensure all executives’ commitment to the success of the Group,

The members of the Nominations and Remuneration Committees are myself, Francis Coles, as Chair, and Matthew P. Earl
both independent non-executive directors. The Board is of the view that we have recent and relevant experience. Meetings
are held on average twice a vear. José Luis Vazquez (CEO), and Gonzalo Babio (Finance Director), attend by invitation. [
report to the Board following a Nomination and Remuneration Committee meeting and minutes are available to the Board.

Non-executive directors are appoeinted on contracts with a three-month notice period and may be awarded fees as
determined by the Board.

Executive directors arg appainted on contracts with a 12-month notice period.

Directors’ Remuneration

The following table summarises the remuneration receivable by the directors for the year ended 31 March 20240.

Salary & fees Benefits ;PZU 2919
l'otal l'otal
0 $400 5000 0004
Executive
José-Luis Varquez 288 3 291 273
Jose (fozalbo Sidro 308 I 319 224
Gonzalo Bable 198 12 210 172
Non-executive
Javier Casanueva - - - 9
Mathew Earl 37 - a7 39
l'rancis Coles 56 - 56 39
887 16 913 T76

The directors' participation in the company's share option plan is detailed in Note 23 and. as confirmed in Note 9, there
were no contributions paid into a pension scheme for any director.

Francis Coles

Chair ot the Nominations and Remuneration Cominittee
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Directors' responsibilities

The directors are responsible for preparing the annual report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable law
and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the directors
have elected to prepare the group financial statements in accordance with [ntemational Financial Reporting Standards
(TFRSs) as adopted by the European Union. The Directors have elected to prepare the Company financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Standards (United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice including FRS 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework}. Under company law the
directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the group and company and of the profit or loss of the Group for that year, The directors are also required to
prepare financial statements in sccordanee with the rules of the London Stock Exchange for companies trading securities
on ATM.

In preparing these financial statements, the directors are required to:

select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently:
make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent:

for the Group financial statements, state whether applicable I'RSs have been followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements:

for the Company financial statements. state whether applicable UK accounting standards have been followed,
subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the finaneial statements;

prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
company will continue in business.

The dircctors are responsible for keeping adequale aceounting records that are sulficient to show and cxplain the
company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the company and enable
them to cnsure that the financial statcments comply with the requirements of the Companics Act 2006, They arc also
responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and
deteetion of [raud and other itregularitics.

Wehsite publication

The directors are responsible for ensuring the annual report and the financial statements are made available on the
Company’s website. Financial statements are published on the company's website in accordance with legislation in the
United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements, which may vary from legislation in
other jurisdictions. The maintenance and integrity of the Company's website is the responsibility of the directors. The
directors' responsibility alse extends to the ongeing integrity of the financial statements contained therein.
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Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Mirada Ple (the *Parent Company'} and its subsidiaries {the 'Group') for the
year ended 31 March 2020 which comprise the consolidaled statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of financial position, the company statement of financial position, the conselidated statement of changes in
cquity, the company stalement of changes in equity, the consolidated statement ol cash lows and notes to the (inancial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the financial statements is applicable law and
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the Evropean Union. The financial reporting framework
that has been applied in the preparation of the Parent Company financial statements is applicable law and United Kingdom
Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework (United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

[ our opinivu:

the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the Group's and of the Parent Company's affairs
as at 31 March 2020 and of the Group's profit for the ycar then ended;

the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the
Furopean Union ;

the Parent Company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; and

the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK}) and applicable law.
QOur responsibilitics under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilitics for the audit of the
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group and the Parent Company in accordance with
the cthical requirements that are relevant w our awdit ol the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical
Standard as applied to listed entities. and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requircments, We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is suflicicnt and appropriate o provide a basis for our
opinion,

Conclusions relating to going concern

We liave nothing 1o report in respect ol the following matters in relativn to which the ISAs (UK) require us o repurt

fo you where:

the Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is not
appropriate; or
the Dircctors have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertaintics that may cast
significant doubt about the Group's or the Parent Company's ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis
of accounting for a period of at Izast twelve months from the date when the financial statements are authorised
for issue.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in ouar audit of the financial
statements of the current period and include the most signiticant assessed risks of material misstatement {whether or not due
to fraud) we identified, including those which had the greatest effect on: the overall audit strategy, the allocation of
resources in the audit; and directing the efforts of the engagement team. These matters
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were addressed i the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our epinion thereon, and

we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key Audit Matter

How we wildressed the key andit matter in our andit

Revene recognition

The Group's revenue recognition policy cuan be
found in note 4d to the tinancial statements.

Several revenue streams exist across the Group
invelving  different  timings and recognition
entailing a degree of complexity as detailed in note
4d. Therefore, revenue recognition related to each
deliverable requires judgement over the assessment
of the scparate contract deliverables. We assessed
revenue recognition as a fraud risk as revenue
formys the basis for certain of the Group™s key
performance indicators, both in  external
communications and for managenment
incentives. As a result, we consider a significant
risk of material misstaternent to arise from the
recognition of revenue thronghout the year.

A summary of procedures performed to address the risk include:

A review of he revenue recognition pelicy for the Group in light of the
rzquirements ot [FRS 15,

Tested a sample of transactions trom the revenue listing by allocating
transaction price to each performance obligation and checked whether the
revenue was recognised apprepriately at a point in time or over time.

Tested a sample of sales invoices raised before and after year end to ensure
that these were accounted tor in the correet period and acerued for, or
deferred, appropriately by agreeing to supporting evidence.

Tested completeness of deferved revenue and existence of acerued revenue
by agreeing the sales invoices to cash receipts and ensuring that revenue
was appropriately recognised during the year.

For all samples tested our westing included inspection of the contracts, proof
of payments and ensuring revenue recognition as per the accounting policy.
We confirmed that the appropriate trigger event i.e. performance obligation
had satisfied in order to ensure that the revenue recognition criteria had been
met.

We also considered the adequacy of the Group's disclosures relating to
revenue recognition in note 4d and 6.

Key observations

Based on procedures performed. we did not identify any evidence of material

nusstatement in the revenue recognised n the year,

Goodwill  and  intangible  asset  impairmient
assessment

The aceounting policies are detailed in noles Af, g,
4.

The (iroup continues 1o be loss making and, as a
result, the Directors have tested goodwill and
intangibles assets, including previously capitalised
development costs, {or impairment. There remains
a degree of uncertainty around expected revenues
and profits to be realised and be sulficient 1o ensure
recoverability of the assets recognised on the
statement of financial position.

Determining if an impairment charge is required for
Goodwill and [ntangible assets involves significant
Judgements about the future results and cash flows
of the busness, including forecast growth in future
revenues and operating profit margins, as well as
determining an appropriate discount factor

Our audit precedurzs involved:

We checked management’s impairment assessment for “Digital TV —
Broadceast™ cash gencrating unit (CGU). including the discounted cash
flow analysis.  As part of this, we challenged the key assumptions,
including the growth ratc and discount rates applied. This included
consultanon with BDOY's valuations specialists on the appropriate use of
key assumplions L.e. discount rate and growth rate.

Based on external evidence examined Le. inflation and growth rates for
similar sized companies, we performed sensitivity testing on revenuve
growth and discount rates used in the impairment assessment to ensure

there was sufficient headroom in their calculation,

Compared the discounted cash flow analysis Lo the historical
performance and the actual post year-end results of the CGU.

Considered the appropriateness of the disclosure included in note 14.
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and long lerm growth rate. Details of these are included
in note 14.

We thersfore focused on these areas and the judgements
applied to future forecasts.

Key observations

Based on procedures performed, we did not note any material issues
with the recoverability of' the intangible assets recognised on the
balance sheet and concluded that management’s judzements and
disclosures were appropriate.

Cning concern assesstitent

The Group has continued to make operating losses n
the financial ycar, which indicates that there is an
elevated risk associated with the Group's going concern
status.

The lnancial statements explain in note 4(b) how the
Dircctors have formed a judgement that it is appropriatc
to adopt the going concern basis of preparation for the
Group financial statements.

That judgement is based on an evaluation of the
inherent risks to the Group's business model and how
those nisks might allect the Group's financial resources
or ability to continue operations over a period of at least
a vear [rom the date of approval ol the linancial
statcments.

The Group's ability to continue as a going coacern has
been subject 1o increased audil serutiny in line of the
anticipated financial impact of COVID-19 and its
potennial impact on the markets as a whole and the
Group in specitic. The Directors have considered the
impact of COVID-1% and have sensitised their forecasts
accordingly.

As the Tull economic effect on the Group and the
uverall econuinic environment are stll uncertain there is
a significant level of judgement involved in anticipatling
results.

Duc to the high level of judgement involved in these
assessments there exists a risk, that inappropriate
assumptions might be utilised in the determination of
the Group's ability 1o continue as a going concern.

Our audit procedures involved:

Discussing with management their assessment of the Group's
ability to continue as a going congern,

Critically evaluating the revenue and cost projections
underlying the model with reference to market inlormation as
well as past performance of the Group.

Analysing the projected cash flow and working capital
assumptions;

Assessing  the impact of COVID-19 on the cash-flow
projections as well as the assumptions and sensitivities relating
to this.

Performing analysis of changes in key assumptions including a
reasonable possible (bul not unrealistic) reduction in (orecast
revenue to understand the sensitivity in the cash flow forecasts.

A review of the directors' statement in note 4(b) of the financial
statements as to whether it is appropriate to adopt the going
concern basis of accounting in preparation of the financial
satements.

Key vbservations

Covered by the conelusions relating to going concern above scetion
above.

Our application of materiality

We apply the concept of materiality in planning and performing our audit and evaluating the effect of misstatement. We
consider materiality to be the magnitude by which misstatements, including omissions. could influence the cconomic
decisions of reasonable users that are taken on the basis of the financial statements.

In order to reduce to an appropriately low level the probability that any misstatements exceed materiality, we use a lower

materiality, performance materiality, te determine the extent of testing needed. Importantly, misstateracnt
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below these levels will not necessarily be evaluated as immaterial as we also take account of the nature of the identified
misstatements, and the particular circumstances of their occurrence when evaluating their effect on the financial statements
as a whole.
We agreed with the audit committee that we would report to the committee all individual audit differences identified
during the course of our Group audit in excess of $10,000 (2019; §9000). We also agreed to report differences below these
thresholds that. in our view, warranted reporting on gualitative grounds.

Group Overall Materiality $197.000 (2019: $186.000)

Group Performance Materiality (75% of Overall

L $143,000 2019 $139,500)
materiality)

Group — 1.5% of Group revenue (2019: 1.5% of revenue}.

Basis for Determining {Group and Parent)
Parent 1% of total assets (2019; 1% of total assets)

Group — Revenue provides a consistent year on year basis for
determining materiality, is a main KPT and is a significant driver of
profit/loss for the year. In order to arrive at this judgement, we
considered the financial measures which we believed to be most

Rationule for benchmark applied (G andd . . . .
ationale for benchmark applied (Group ind relevant to the shareholders in assessing the performance of the

Pareni) Group.
Parent — Total asscts has been used as the Company primarily acts
as a holding company for its subsidiaries.

Parcent Company Overall Materiality $88,000 (2019: $113,000)

Parent Company Performance Materiality $66,000 (2019: $84,500)

Performance materiality was set at 75% (2019 — 73%) of the above materiality figures. 75% is based on our risk
assessment, together with our assessment of the Group's overall contrel environment,

Component materiality

Each significant component of the Group was audited to a lower level of materiality which is used to determine financial
statement arcas that arc included within the scope of our audit and the extent of sample sizes used during the audit.

We determined component materiality as follows:
Range of component materiality 45% to 83% of group materiality

An overview of the scope of our audit

Our Group audit was scoped by obtaining an understanding of the Group and its environment, including the Group's system
of internal control and assessing the risks of material misstatement in the financial statements at the Group level.

In determining the scope of our audit we considered the level of work to be performed at each component in order to ensure
sufficient assurance was gained to allow us to express an opinion on the financial statements of the Group as a whole. We
tailored the extent of the work to be performed by us at each component kased on our assessment of the risk of material
misstatement at each component. We identified three centrally controlled components, of
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which, we have audited two components. The third significant component is based in Madrid, Spain and was audited by
BDO Spain, detailed instructions were issued and discussed with the component auditor.

The Group audit team wus actively invelved in directing the audit strategy of the component audit, reviewed m detail the
findings and considered the impact of these upon the Group audit opinion,

For the two components not considered significant, we performed analytical review procedures together with substantive

testing on Group audit risk areas applicable to those components based on their relative size, risks in the business and our
knowledge of the entity appropriate to respond to the risk of material misstatement.

Other information

The Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information compnses the information included in the
annual report, other than the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. Qur opinion on the financial statements
does not cover the cther information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report. we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with cur audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and. in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained
in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identity such material inconsistencies or apparent
material misstatements, we arg required to determing whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or
4 material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact, We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audil:

the information given in the Strategic report and the Directors' report for the financial year for which the
financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements: and

the Strategic report and the Directors' report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal
requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and the Parent Company and its enviromment obtained in the
course of the audit, we have notidentified material misstatements in the Strategic report or the Directors' report.

We have nothing to repuit in respect ol the lollowing matters in relation w which the Companies Act 2006 requires us tu
report to you if, in our opinion:

adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Parent Company, or returns adequate for our audit have
not been received from branches not visited by us; or

the Parent Company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and retumns; or

certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.
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Responsihilities of directors

As explained more fully in the Statement of directors' responsibilities set out on page 19, the Directors are responsible for
the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal
control as the Directors determine i necessary to enable the preparation of tinancial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether duce to fraud or error.

[n preparing the financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Group's and the Parent Company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable. matters related to going concern and using the geing
concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the Group or the Parent Company or 1o cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance 1 a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with [SAs (UK) will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can arnse from traud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further deseription of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial slatements 1s located on the Financial Reportling
Council's website at: www.frc.org.uk/anditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor's report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the Parent Company's members. as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Parent Company's members those
matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the tullest extent permitted by
law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Parent Company and the Parent Company's
members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

David Buicher (Senior Statutory Audiior)
For and on behalf of BDO LLP, statutory aviditor

London
United Kingdom

15 July 2020

BDO LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales {with registered number QOC305127).
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Note 2020 2019
$000 000
Revenue 6 13,157 12,322
Cost of sales (676) (857)
Gross profit 12,481 11,465
Depreciation 15,16 (360 (80}
Amortisation 14 (3,499) (3,578)
Share-based payment charge 25 - (70}
Staft costs 9 {6.,790) (7.249)
Oher adininistralive expenses (3.196) (3,402)
Total administrative expenses (13,845) (14,379)
Operating loss 8 {1,304) (2,914)
Gain on disposal of Mirada Connect 2.7 1,699 -
Non operating profit 1,699 -
Finance income 10 65 141
Finance cxpense 11 (177 (523)
Foreign currency translation differences 52 -
Profit/(loss) before taxation 2175 (3.290)
Taxation 12 313 184
Profit/(loss) for year 588 (3,112)
Other comprehensive income for the period
Amounis that wilf or may be reclassified to the profit or loss
Forex on translation of foreign operations 2,888 (565)
Total comprehensive profit/(loss) for the period 3,476 (3,677)
Earming/(loss) per shar Year ended 31 Year ended 31
arming/{loss) per share March 2020 March 2019
b3 b3
Earning/(loss) per share for the year
- basic & diluted 13 0.001 (0.006)

The notes on pages 31 to 67 form part of these financial statements
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Company number 036{19752 Note 2020 2019
5000 $000
Goodwill 14 5,008 5,924
Other [otangible assets 14 6,631 5,855
Right of use assets 15 482 -
Property, plant and equipment 16 228 222
Other Receivables 17 486 398
Non-current assets 11,925 12,399
Trade & other reecivables 17 6,960 5,421
Cash and cash equivalents 27 185 117
Current assets 7,151 5,538
Total assets 20,076 17,937
Loans and borrowings 19 (2.820) {3,257y
Related parties loans and interests 19 (7 -
Trade and other payables 18 (2,019 {1,938}
Defened income 18 (1,785) {1.019%
Lease labilitics 13 (229) -
Current liabilities (6,860) (6,234)
Net current asscts/(liabilities) 291 (696}
Total assets less current liabilities 13,216 11,703
Related parties leans 20 (1,210 -
Interest bearing loans and borrowings 20 (1,195 {1,721}
Lease liabilities 15 (259) -
Naon-current liabilities (2,664) (1,721)
Total liahilities (9,524) (7,95%)
Net asseis 10,552 9,982
Issued share capital and reserves attributable to
equity holders of the company
Share capital 23 12,015 12,015
Share premium 24 - 15,995
Other reserves 18,286 15,398
Accumulated loss {19.749) (33,4260
Equity 10,552 9,982

These financial statements were approved and authorised for issue on July 15 2020

Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors

José-Luis Vazquez
Chief Executive Officer

The notes on pages 31 to 67 form part of these financial statements
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Share Share Foreign Merger Accumulated .
capital premium exchange reserves lusses fotal
reserve
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

Balance at 1 April 2019 12,15 15,905 1,535 4,863 {33.426) 9982
Profit for the year - - - - 588 588
Other comprehensive income
Movement in foreign exchange - - 2.888 - - 2.888
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 2,388 - 588 3476
Transactions with owners
Share premium cancelation - (15.995) - - 13,089 (2,906)
Balance at 31 March 2020 12,15 - 134237 4,863 (19.749) 10,552

Share Share Foreign Merger Accumulated

capital premium exchange reserves losses Total

reserve
s000 5000 $000 3000 5000 5000

Balance at 1 April 2018 2,261 15,760 11,122 4,863 {30,750) 3,220
Prior Year Adjustment-IFRS 15 (Note 2) - - - - 380 380
Loss for the vear - - - - (3.112)  (3112)
Other comprehensive income
Movemeniin foreign exchange - - (387) - 22 (565)
Total comprehensive loss for the year - - (387) - (2.710)  (3.297)
Transactions with owners
Share-based payment - - - - 70 70
Conversion of convertible loans into shares 5,858 233 - - - 6,093
Issue of shares 3.896 - - - - 3.896
Bulance at 31 March 2019 12,015 15,995 10,535 4,863 {33.426) 9,982
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The notes on pages 31 to 67 form part of these financial statements
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Note 2020 2019
5000 $000

Cash flows from operating activitics
Profit/(loss) after tax 588 (3,112)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property. plant and equipment 13.16 360 80
Amortisation of intangible asscts 14 3,499 3578
Sharc-based payment charge - 70
Finance income (65) (141}
Finance 177 523
Eopense currency translation differences 52) -
Taxation (313) (184)
Gain on disposal of Mirada Connect {1,699 -
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital 2,495 814
Increase in trade and other {2.011) (1.654)
faceenabledecrease) in trade and other payables 1065 (703)
Interest paid 11 (14) -
Taxation received 265 307
Net cash used in operating activities 1,800 (1,236)
Cash flows from investing activities
Interest and similar income received 10 65 141
Purchases of property. plant and equipment 16 (126) (80)
Purchases of other intangible assets 14 4319 (3,127)
Cash procecds from sale of Mirada Connect 2 2,605 -
Net cash used in investing activitics {1.77%) (3,0606)
Cash flows from financing activities
Interest and similar expenses paid 11 {163) (523)
Issue of share capital - 3.896
Payment of principal on lease liabilities 27 {242) -
Loans received 27 1,958 1,201
Related parties loans received 27 1,210 -
Repavment of loang 27 {2.824) (2,150)
Net cash (used in)/from financing activities (1) 2,424
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (36) (1,878)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 27 17 1,937
Exchange losses on cash and cash equivalents 104 58
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the vear 27 185 117

The notes on pages 31 to 67 form part of these financial statements
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Notes to financial statements
Year ended 31 March 2020

1. General information

Mirada ple is a company incorporated in the United Kingdom. The address of the registered office is 68 Lombard
Street, Londen, EC3V 9LJ. The nature of the Group's operations and its principal activities are the provision and
support of praducts and services in the Digital TV and Broadcast markets,

2. Change in consolidation scope

Main changes for the year ended as at 31 March 2020:

On 5 July 2019, the Group announced the sale of the whelly owned subsidiary Mirada Connect Lid. to PayByPhone
UK Limited {subsidiary of Volkswagen Financial Services, AG), for a consideration of $2.61 million (£2.12 million).
As a result, the Group recognised a gain of $1.70 million as shown in the Consolidated Income Statement. As a
cansequence of said disposal. the results of Mirada Connect Ltd are included as part of the consolidation scope from |
April 2019 to the cffective date of disposal. For the purposc of IFRS 5, this is not a discontinued operation.

3. Changes in accounting policies

a.  Adoption of new and revised standards effective fram I April 2019
IFRS 16 - Leases

This Standard replaces the following standards: {a) IAS 17 Leases; (b) ITRIC 4 Determining Whether an
Arrangement Contains a Leasc: (¢) S1C-15 Operating Leases — Incentives; and S1C-27 Evaluating the Substance of
Transactions in the Legal Form of a Lease.

IFRS 10 establishes that companies that are lessee in lease contracts will recognise in the consolidated balance sheet
the liabilities and assets of lease contracts (except short-term and low-value lease agreements). Furthermore, the
operating lease expense has been replaced by a charge for straight-line amortisation of right of use assets and an
interest expense on lease liabilities.

This standard has not introdvced significant changes in the accounting for Icase contracts by the lessor.

The Group previously classified leases as operating or finance lcases under [AS L7 (refer to Note 26). With respect to
the leases classified as finance leases in accordance with [AS 17, the book value of the right of use asset and the lease
liability on the date of first-time application will be the carrying amount of the lease assct and the lease liability
immediately prior to that date, measured in accordance with 1AS 17. With respect to operating leases, the lessee will
record the asset by right of use and the leasc hability in accordance with this standard as of the date of first-time
application.

The Group has opted to apply the modified retrospective approach, without restating the comparative information
presented as at 31 March 2019 under the aforementioned standards, On transition to TFRS 16, the Group elected to
apply the practical expedient to grandfather the ussessment of which transactions are leases. It applied [FRS 16 only
to contracts that were previously identified as leases. Under this option. the Group has calculated the lease liability as
the current value of the outstanding instalments on the contracts in force at the date of first-time application
determined on the basis of the incremental interest rates on the aforemsntioned date and has recognised the value of
the right-of-use asset for the same amount of the lease Liability calculated at | April 2019.

The average incremental borrowing rates for the main countrics aftfected by this standard, used for calculating the
current value of the rights of use and of the operating lease liabililies recognised at the date of first-time application of
IFRS 16 are detailed in Note 15.

The right of usc and leasc Liability were defined according to the eriginal contract term.
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IERS 16 establishes two exceptions for the lease recognition that included the low-value lease agreements (amount
equal or less than to §5 thousand) and short-term lease agreement (for a period equal or less of 12 months). For these
cases, the expenditures are recognised as expense during the term of the lease agreement. The Group has taken
advantage of these two practical expedients in determining ROU assets and Lease liability

To calculate this impact. the Group has analyscd, among other factors, the duration of the significant leascs
considering whether the agreements can be terminated early or not and whether or not the durations can be
unilaterally extended by the lessee and, in both cascs. the degree of certainty, which, in turn, depends on the expected
use of the assets located in the underlying properties leased.

The following table shows the impact on the consolidated statement of financial position at | April 2019 of
application of the standard:

IFRS 16

at 1 April 2019

000

Lcasc Liabilitics 492
Right-of-use asscly 492

The following table reflects a reconciliation between the operating lease commitments presented at 31 March 2019
and the lcasc liabilitics recognised al | April 2019:

1 April 2019
$000

Operating lease commitments at 31.03.2019 as reported in the
Statements of Financial Position (Note 26) 960
Impact due to the discount of the future payments using the
incremental herrowing rate at 1 April 2020 {19)
Recognition exemption tor short-term at transition (246}
Recognition exemption for low value at transition (203}
Lease liabilities recognised at 1 April 2019 492
Current Lease liabilities recognised at 1 April 2019 207
Non-current Lease liabilities recognised at 1 April 2019 285

There was no material impact on the Consolidated Statement of Cashflows.

Other new amended standards and Interpretations issued by the JASB that apply to the financial statements do not
impact the Group as they are either not relevant to the Group's activities or require accounting which is consistent
with the Group's current accounting policies, These standards are:

IFRIC 23 - Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments
Amendments fo IFRS 9 - Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation
Amendments to 14S 19 - Emplovee Benefits
Anral Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015-2017 Cvcle
b, Adoption of new and revised stundards effective from I April 2020
New Standards, interpretations and amendments not yet effective

There are a number of standards and amendments to standards, and interpretations which have been issued by the
[ASB that are effective n future accounting periods that the group has decided not to adopt early. The
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most significant of these are as follows, effective for the period beginning 1 April 2020, The Group is currently
assessing the impact of these new standard and amendments. The Group does not expect any other standards issued
by the [ASB, but not yet effective, to have a material outcome on the group.

Amendments to JAS I and TAS §

Definition of materiality or with relative importance. This amendment clarifics the definition ol materiality or relative
importance and how it should be applied by introduction in the definition of guides that until now have been
addressed in other parts of the IFRS Standards: improving the cxplanations thal accompany the definition and
ensuring that the definition of materiality or with relative importance 1s consistent throughout all IFRS Standards. The
Group will consider the new definition of maleriality and do not foresee significant impacl in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statement.

Amendments to IFRS 3 - Business combinations

At the date of authorisation for issue of these consolidated financial statements, the amendments to IFRS 3 - Business
combinations have been approved by the International Accounting Standards Board (JASB).

Amendments to [FRS 3 - Business combinations. IFRS 3 is amended to limit and clarify the definition of a business,
and to enable a simplified evaluation of whether a set of activities and assets acquired is a group of assets instead of a
business.

4. Significant accounting policies
a. Basis of acconnting

These Group financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards,
International Accounting Stundards and Interpretations issued by the International Accounting Standards Board as
adopted by European Union {*IFR3s™} and with those parts of the Companies Act 20006 applicable to companies
preparing their accounts under TFRSs.

b.  Going concern

These financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis, The Directors have raviewed the
Company and Group's going concem position laking account of its current business activitics, budgeted performance
and the factors likely to affect its future development. which are set out in this Annual report. and include the Group's
objectives, pelicics and processes lor managing its capital, its financial risk management objectives, 118 exposure 10
credit and liquidity risks and the impact of the COVITY-19 pandemic.

As at 31 March 2020, the Group had cash and cash equivalents of $0.19m (2019: $0.12m). had net current assets of
$0.29m (2019: net current liabilitics of $0.70m) and nct assets of $10.55m (2019: $9.98m.). In the year ended 31
March 2020, the Group generated net cash from operating activities of $1.80m (2019: net cash used in operating
activitics S1.24my), realised a prefit for the vear of $0.59m (2019: a loss of $3.11m). Subscquent to the year end, the
Directors are pleased to announce thar they have secured the following additional funding for the business:

. €1.0m of new loans abtained between April 2020 and June 2020 from banks with 80% of these loans
guaranteed by the Spanish government under the COVID-19 relief scheme.

. An extension to the term of its €1.30 million credit facility has been granted by Leasa Spain, S.L.U.The term
of the Facility has been extended by 12 months and now expires on 30 November 2021.

The Directors have prepared detailed cash flow forecasts for the period to at least 31 December 2021. The Directors
regularly review the detailed forecasts of sales, costs and cash flows. The assumptions underlying the forecasts are
challenged, varied and tested to establish the likelihood of a range of possible outcomes, including reasonable cash
flow sensitivities. The expected figures are carefully monitored against actual outcomes each month and variances are
highlighted and discussed at Board level. However, the uncertain impact of COVID-19 introduces more risks and
uncertainty into this year's review. The Group has seen limited impact of COVID-19 on the operational capability of’
the business. From a technelogy peint of view,
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the Group 15 also offering and developing the most advanced features in the market, providing services to a growing
suibscriber base in our core markets. To this end a base case cash flow forecast has been prepared which takes into
account the following key assumptions:

. The continued availability of the Group's invoice discounting facility thronghout the foreseeable future.

. An average revenue growth of 13% in the foreseeable future, which Directors believe, comprise of revenue
that is substantially alrcady sccured under signed contracts.

. Additional net funding of US$1.4m from lenders

. An expected receipt of US$0.3m of Research and Development tax credit in March 2021 from Spanish tax
authoritics,

The Directors have also considered a number of downside scenarios, including a scenario where all revenue growth
from new customers is removed, a scenaric where no further funding is obtained in the period and a reverse stress
test. The purpose of the reverse stress test for the Group is 1o test al what point the cash facilities would be fully
utilised if the assumptions in the Director's base case forecasts are altered. This reverse stress test includes both a
removal of all revenue growth from new customers and a reduction of contracted revenue from existing customers
for the forecast period, resulting in an overall reduction of revenue of ¢.20%. as well as the removal of any potential
future funding and the receipt of the USS0.3m Research and Development tax credits anticipated. In the event that
the performance of the Group is not in line with the projections, and more akin to one of our downside scenarios,
including the worst case scenario, action will be taken by management mmediately to adcress any potential cash
shortfall for the foreseeable future. The actions that could be taken by the Directors include both a review and
restructuring of employment related costs, including the deferral of any potential bonuses due to employees. These
measures alone could save at least $1.0m in operating costs and therefore cash flows, Further, the Directors could
alse negotiate access to other sources of finances from our lenders. Given the Director's current relationship with
lenders and their recent success in negotiations with these financial institutions. whilst there are no binding
agreements currently in place, negotiations are in very advanced stages for additional funding.  Therefore, they
Directors are canfident that any additional funding required would he ohtained.

Whilst the cash flow forecasts prepared have been sensitised to consider a number of downside scenarios, including
the reversce stress test, the Dircctors arc pleased to note that the post year end performance of the Group has exceeded
the original forecast for April and May 2020. Therefore demonstrating that the Group has not suffered negatively
from the impact of COVID-19 and is in a strong place to meet the base case forecasts.

Overall. the sensitised cash flow forecasts demonstrate that the Group will be able to pay its debts as they fall due for
the period to at least 31 December 2021, The Directors are. therefore, satisfied that the financial statements should be
prepared on the going concern basis,
Sce note 42 1o the [inancial statements for further information en going concern.
. Buasis ef consolidation
The consolidated financial stalemenis incorporale the financial statements ol the Company and entitics controlled by
the Company (its subsidiaries) made up to 31 March 2020.
Where the company has control over an investee, it is classified as a subsidiary. The company controls an investee if
all three of the following elements are present: power over the investee, exposure to variable returns from the

investee, and the ability of the investor to use its power to affect those variable returns. Control is reassessed
whenever facts and circumstances indicate that there may be a change in any of these elements of control.

All intra-group transactions. balances, income and expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

d.  Revenue recognition

Interactive service revenues are divided into 5 types: development fees, the sale of licences, SaaS, managed services
and self-billing revenues,
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1} Revenues from development fees {which mclude set-up fees): these are recogmsed according to munagement's
estimation of the stage of completion of the project. This is measured by reference to the amount of development
time spent on a project compared to the most up te date calculation of the total time estimated to complete the
project in full.

Since the Group has determinate the works incurred are specific to the customer and cannot be used on
alternative contracts and Mirada has right 10 payment for all incurred works, the revenue is recognised over the
time.

2} Sale of licence: Revenue from licences are carned from twoe specific and scparate strcams.

i) Where the revenue relates to the sale of a one-off licence, the licence element of the sale is recognised as
income when the following conditions have been satisfied:

The software has been provided to the customer in a form that cnables the customer to utilise it;

The ongoing obligations of the Group to the customer are minimal; and

The amount payable by the customer is determinable and there 1s a reasonable expectation of payment.
The performance obligation included in this type of contract is to provide initially licence and key to access.

ii)  Contract licence fees payable by customers are dependent upon the number of end user subseribers signing up
to the customer's digital television service, purchased Set Top Boxes or active devices. Licences cover the right of use
ol the soltware in the initial conditions without any right to modify it. Nonc of the contracts have an ond or
termination date. Typically, once you sign a contract, you keep using the software for many years.

For this type of contract, revenues are recognised by multiplying the individual licence Tee by the nel increase in the

customer's subscriber base, purchased Set Top Boxes or active devices.

The Group promises to grant a licence that provides a customer with a right to nse and obfain substantially all the
benefits from the licence. As a consequence of this, the recognition of the revenue is at a point in time at which the
licence is granted.

3)  SaaS: Some of the licence software are under Software as a Service model (SaaS). Under this model, lower
integration set up fees than in other agreements are offset by recurrent monthly licence fee revenues. Revenue for
Saa$S arrangements are recognised over the period of the arrangement to reflect the ongoing service provision.
This is on the basis that the Group's performance under these services does not create an asset with an altgrnative
use to the Group and that the Group has an enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date.

4}  Managed services. Revenue 1s meuasured on a straight-line basis over the length of the contract i1.e. as and when
the service is being provided. Length of service is pre-defined in the contract and there are no performance
obligations after the contract term 15 complete.

5} Transactions revenues: These are earned through a revenue-share agreement hetween Mirada Connect Ltd and
the customers for the cashless parking services which are presented in the Mobile segment. The Group are
informed by the customer of the amount of revenue to invoice and the revenues are recognised at a point in time
in the period these parking services happen. Mirada Connect Ltd was sold in July 2019 to PavbyPhone Lid. a
subsidiary of the Volkswagen Group.

Where agreements involve multiple obligations. the entire fee from such arrangements is allocated to each of the
individual obligations based on each obligation's fair value. The revenue in respect of each element is recognised in
accordance with the above policies.

Certain revennes earned by the Group are invoiced in advance. As cullined in the revenue recognition policy above,
revenues are recognised in the period in which the Group provides the services 10 the custonmier, revenucs relating to
services which have yet to be provided to the customer are deferred.
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e, Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the purchase method. The cost of the acquisition is measured at the
aggregate of the fair values, at the date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity
instruments issued or to be issued, by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. plus any costs directly
attributable to the business combination. The acquiree's dentifiable assets, Labilities and contingent liabilities that
meet the conditions for recognition under IFRS 3 are recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised as an asset and initially measured at cost and 1s accounted for according
to the peolicy below.

f Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group's interest 1n the fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities of the acquired business at the date of acquisition. Goodwill is initially recognised as an asset at
cost and 15 subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

On disposal of a subsidiary the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the profit or loss on
disposal.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwil. is allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units expected to
benefit from the synergies of tat the balance sheet datehe combination. Cash-generating units to which goodwill has
been allocated are tested for impairment annvally, or more frequently when there is an indication that the unit may be
impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the carrving amount of the unit, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the
other assets of the unit pro-rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit.

2. Other intangible assets

Intangible asscts acquired as part of a business combination are initially recognised at their fair value and
subsequently amortised on a straight-line basis over their useful economic lives. Intangible assets that neet the
recognition criteria of 1AS 38, “lntangible Asscts™ arc capitalised and carricd at cost less amortisation and any
impairment losses. Intangible assets comprise of completed technology, acquired software, capitalised develepment
costs and goodwill.

Amortisation of other intangible assets is calculated over the following periods on a straight-line basis:

Completed technology - over a useful \ife of 4 years
Deferred development costs - over a usefl life of 3 to 4 years

The armortisation is charged to administrative expenses in the consolidated income statement. Completec technology
relates to software and other technology related intangible assets acquired by the Group from a third party, Deferred
development costs are internally-generated intangible assets arising from work completed by the Group's product
development team.

h.  Internally-generated intangible assers — reseqrch and development expenditure

Any internally generated intangible asset arising from the Group's development projects are recognised only if all ot
the following conditions are met:

The technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale.

The intention to complete the intangible asset and vse or sell it.

The ability to use or sell the intangible asset.

How the intangible asset will generate prebable future economic benefits, Among other things, the Group can
demonstrate the existence of a market for the output of the intangible asset or the intangible asset itself or, if it is
to be used internally, the usefulness of the intangible asset.
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The availability of adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or

sell the intangible asset.
Its abilily (o measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the inlangible asset during its development.

If a development project has been abandoned, then any unamortised balance is immediately written off to the income
staterment. Where no internally-generated intangible asset can be recognised, development expenditure is recognised
as an expense in the period in which it is incurred. The amortisation is charged to administrative expenses in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive incoma.

.

Impairment of non-current assets excluding deferred tax assets

At each reporting date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that thosc asscts have suffered an impairment loss. 1t any such indication cxists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss {if any).

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future
cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount, An impairment loss is
recognised in the impairment of intangible assets line in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income as an
expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating unit) is increased
1o the revised cstimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the incrcased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
(cash-gencraling unit) in priotr periods. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income immediately.

Goedwill impairments are not reversed,

J Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment in value.

Depreciation is provided ou all property, plant and equipment, other than fieehuold land, at rates calculated o write oflT
the cost. less estimated residual value based on current prices. of each asset evenly over its expected useful life, as
follows:

- Office & computer equipment 33.3% per annum

- Short-lcaschold improvements 10% per annum

The carrving values of property, plant and cquipment are revicwed for impairment if cvents or changes in
circumstances indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable. The asset's residual values, useful lives and
methods are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, al cach linancial period end.

k. Right-of-use assets and Lease liabilities (policy applicable as from 1 April 2019)

On 1 April 2019, the Group adopted IFRS 16, on Leases. The Group opted to use the moditied retrospective approach
on transition which involves applying the standard retroactively with the cumulative ¢ffect from the date of first
application, without restating the information presented as at 31 March 2019 under the aforementioned standards.

At the start o7 a contract, the Group evaluates whether it contains a lease. A contract is or contains a leass if it grants
the right te control the use of the asset identified for a period of time in exchange for a consideration.
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The length of time during which the Group uses an asset includes consecutive and non-consecutive periods of time.
The Group only re-assesses the conditions when a contract is amended.

In contracts with onc or more lease and non-lease components, the Group deems all components as one sole Iease
component.

The Group has alse chosen to not recognise in the balance sheet the lease liabilities and the night-of-use asset
corresponding to short term lease agreements (leases for one year or less} and leases for low value assets {($5 thousand
or less). For this type of contracts, the Group recognises straight-line payments during the lease term.

i Lessee accounting

At the commencement of the leasc term, the Group recogniscs a right-of-use asset and leasc liability. The right-of-use
asset 1s composed of the amount of the lease liability. any payment for the lease made on or prior to the starting date.
less any incentives received, the initial direet costs incurred and an cstimate of the costs for decommissioning or
restoration to be incurred. as indicated in the accounting policy provisions.

The Group measures the lease liability as the present value of the lease payments which are outstanding at the
commencement date. The Group discounts lease payments at the appropriate incremental interest rate, unless the
implicit interest rate of the lessor may be determined reliably.

The pending lease payments are comprised of fixed payments, less any incentive to he collected, the variable payments
that depend en an index or rate. initially appraised by the index or rate applicable on the starting dale, the amounts
expected to be paid for residual value guarantees, the price of exercising the purchase option whose exercise is
reasonably certain and any compensation payments {or contract termination, providing the term of the lease reflects the
termination option.

The Group measurss the right-of-use assets at cost, less depreciation and accrued impairment losses, adjusted by any
re-estimate of the lease liability.

If the contract transfers ownership of the asset to the Group at the end of the lease term or if the right-of-use asset
includes the price of the purchase option, the depreciation criteria indicated in Note 4.j are applied from the lease
commencement date until the end of the useful life of the asset. Otherwise, the Group depreciates the right-of-use asset
from the commencement date until the date of the useful life of the right or the end of the lease term, whichever is the
earlier.

The Group applies the criteria for impairment of non-current assets set out in Note 4.1 to right-of-use assets.

The Group measures the lease liability increasing it by the interest accrued, decreasing it by the payments made and
re-assessing the carrying amount due to any amendments to the lease or to reflect any reviews of the in-substance tixed
lease payments.

The Group rccords any variable payments that were not ineluded in the initial valuation ol the lability in lhe
Consolidated Income Statement for the pericd in which the events resulting in payment were produced.

The Group records any re-assessments of the liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset, until it is reduced to

zero, and subscquently in the Consolidated Income Statement.

The Group re-asscsses the Icase Liability discounting the lease payments at an updated rate, if any change is made to the
lease term or any change in the expectation of the purchase option is being exercised on the underlying asset.

The Group re-assesses the lease liability if there is any change in the amounts expected to be paid for a residual value
guarantee or any change in the index or rate used for determining payments, including any change for reflecting changes
in market rents once these have been reviewed.

The Group recognises an amendment to the lease as a separate lease if it increases the scope of the lease by adding one
or more rights of use amd the amvunt ol consideration for the lease increases by an armount coosistent with the individual
price for the increased scope and any adjustment to the individual price to reflect the specific circumstances of the
contract.

If the amendment does net result in a separate lease, on the amendment date the Group assigns the consideration

3¢




Mirada ple
Notes to financial statements
Year ended 31 March 2020

to the amended contract as indicated above, it re-determines the term of the lease and re-estimates the value of the
liability discounting the revised payments at the revised interest rate. The Group writes down the carrving amount of
the right-of-use asset to reflect the partial or total end of the lease in any amendments that reduce the scope of the
lzase and it records the profit or loss in income. For all other amendments, the Group adjusts the carrying amount of
the right-of-use asset.

L Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial habilities are recognised on the Group's statement of financial position at fair value
when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to their
acquisition or issue, and subsequently measured at amortised cost using effective interest method less provision from
Lmpairment

Trade receivables represent amounts due from customers in the normal course of business.

The group applies the [FRS 9 simplified approach to measuring expected eredit losses which uses a lifetime expected
credit Joss allowance for all irade receivables and contract assets, During this process the probability of non-payment
of a trade receivable balance is assessed and multiplied by an expected amount of credit loss as a result of the likely
credit default, The group has set up a matrix using the age a debtor is overdue and any likely events as a criteria to
determine the default probability. This uses 5 categories ranging from 0% to 90% probability.

The Group only have assets that are categorised as amortised cost and the application of ECL has not had a material
impact to the impairment provision. As a conclusion, the impact of the IFRS 9 on the Group was immaterial.

Impairment provisions for receivables from related parties and loans to related parties are recognised based on a
forward looking expected credit loss model. The methodelogy used to determine the amount of the provision is based
on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition of the financial asset. For those
where the credit risk has not mereased significantly since initial recognition of the financial asset, 12 month expected
credit losses along with gross interest income are recognised. For those for which credit risk has increased
significantly, lifetime expected credit losses along with the gross interest income are recognised. For those that are
determined to be credit impaired, lifetime expected credit losses along with interest income on a net basis are
recognised.

The provision for expected credit losses against receivables from related parties were not material and no charge is
made in the current and last year.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at hand and deposits held at call with banks with original maturitics of three
months or less.

Financial liahilities and equity instraments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements
ertered into. An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities.

Equity mstruments issued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds received. net of direct issue costs.

Financial instruments issued by the Group are treated as equity only to the extent that they do not meet the definition
ol a financial liability. The Group's ordinary shares arc classificd as cquily. When new shares are issucd, they are
recorded in share capital at their par value. The excess of the issue price over the par value is recorded in the share
premium rescrve.

Incremental cxternal costs directly attributable to the issue of new sharces {other than in conncetion with a busincss
combination) are recorded in equity as a deduction, net of tax, to the share premium reserve.
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Bank Borrowings

Interest-bearing bank loans are initially recorded at fair value less direct issue costs. Finance charges are accounted
for on an accruals basis in the income statement using the effective interest rate method and are added to the carrying
ameunt of the instrument to the extent that they are not settled in the period in which they arise.

Invoice discounting

The Group has an invoice discounting facility secured on the trade dehtors as specified in Note 17. Liabilities under
this arrangement are shown in borrowings.

Trade payables

Trade payables are initially measured at fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method.

m.  Employee share incentive plans

The Group issues equity-settled share-based payments to certain employees (including directors). These payments are
measured at fuir value at the date of grant by use of the Black-Scholes pricing model. This fair value cost of
equity-settled awards is recognised on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on the Group's estimate of
shares that will eventually vest and adjusted for the effect of any non market-based vesting conditions. The expected
life used in the model has been adjusted. based on management's best estimate, for the effects of non-transferability.
exercise restrictions, and behavioural considerations. A corresponding credit is recorded in equity in the retained
garnings,

n. Leases (policy applied through 1 April 2019)

Leases taken by the Group are assessed individvally as to whether they are finance leases or eperating leases. Leascs
are classified as finance leases whenever the termis of the lease transter substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee. All other leascs are classificd as operating leascs.

Operating lease rental payments are recognised as an expense in the statement of comprehensive income on a
straight-line basis over the lease term. The benerit of lease incentives is spread over the term of the lease.

0.  Tuxation
The tax expense represents the sum of the current tax and deferred tax charges.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable protit for the period. Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in
the income statement because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and
it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is calculated using
fax rates that have been cnacted or substantively cnacted by the reporting date.

[f the Group considers it is likely that the tax authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment, the Group will establish
the laxable gain (loss). the lax bases. unused lax losses, unused tax credits or the lax rales consistent with the tax
treatment used or intended to be used in its income tax returns.

If the Group considers it unlikely that the tax authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment, the Group will reflect
the effect of the uncertainty to establish the taxable gain (loss), the tax bases, unused tax losses or credits or the
corresponding tax rates. The Group will reflect the effect of the uncertainty for cach uncertain tax treatment by using
the most likely amount or the expected value of the probability weighted amounts.

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tux bases used in the computation of taxable profit and
is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised
if the temporary difference arises from the initia) recogmition of
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goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets and lLabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the tax profit nor the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax asscts is revicwed at cach reporting date and reduced te the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient tuxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expeeted to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the
asset is realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the income statement. except when it relates to items charged
or eredited directly (o equity, in which case the deferred tax is also deall with in equity.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilitics and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the
Group intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

p- Research and development tax credit

Companies within the group may be entitled to claim special tax allowances in relation to qualifying research and
development expenditure (e.g. R&D tax credits). The group accounts for such allowances as tax credits and recognise
them when it is probable that the benefit will flow to the group and that benefit can be reliably measured, R&D tax
credits reduce current tax expense and. to the extent the amounts due in respect of them are not settled by the balance
sheet date, reduce current tax payable.

¢.  Retirement benefit costs

The Group operates defined contribution pension schemes. The amount charged to the statement of comprehensive
incotne in respect of pension costs and other post-retirement benefits is the contributions payable in the period.

Differences between contributions payable in the period and contributions actually paid arc shown as cither accruals

or prepayments in the statement of financial position.

r.  Foreign exchange

The individual financial statements of cach group company are presented in the currency of the primary economie
environment in which it operates (its functional currency). For the purpose of the consolidated financial statements,
the result and the [inancial position of cach group company arc cxpressed in US Dollars, which is the presentational
currency for the consolidated financial statements.

On translation of balances into the functional currency of the entity in which they are held, exchange differences
arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are included in profit or loss
for the period,

For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign
operations are translated at exchange rates prevailing on the reporting date. Income and expense items are translated
at the average exchange rates for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during that period. in which
casc the exchange rates at the date of transactions arc used.

Exchange differences arising on translating the opening statement of financial position and the current year income
statements are classified as equity and transferred to the Group's foreign exchange reserve.  Such translation
differences are recognised as income or an expense in the period in which the eperations is disposed of.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a loreign entity are treated as asscts and liabilitics of
the foreign entity and translated at the closing rate. The Group has elected to treat goodwill and

fair value adjustments arising on acquisitions before the date of transition to IFRS as sterling denominated assets and
liabilitics.
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5. Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty
In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are described in notes 3 and 4, the directors are required
to make judgements, esimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of asscts and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and asscciated assumptions are based on historical experience and
other lactors that are considered (o be relevant. Actual resulis may dilfer [rom these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.

. Key judgements

The following arc the critical judgements that the directors have made in the process of applying the Group's
accounting policies that has the most significant eftect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements.

Presenting financial information in USD

The reporting currency is US Dollar due 1o the growing exposure to the US Dollar, as all major contracts and most of
the new potential deals for the Company are denominated in this currency. The board therefore believes that USD
financial reporting provides the best presentation of the group's financial position. tunding and treasury functions,
financial performance and its cash flows. Coupled with the evolution of the business, the group's sharcholder basc is
now largely comprised of investors to whom financial reporting in GBP is of limited relevance. Internally. the board
also bases its performance evaluation and many investment decisions on USD financial information.

Capiralised development costs

Any internally generated intangible assct arising from the Group's development projects are recognised only once all
the conditions set out in the accounting policy Intemnally Generated Intangible Assets (refer to Note 3.h) are met. The
amottisation period of capitalised development costs is determined by reference to the expected flow of revenucs
from the product based on historical experience. Furthermore, the Group reviews, at the end ot each financial year,
the capitalised development costs for cach product for indications of any loss of value compared te net book value at
that time. This review is based on expected future contribution less the total expected costs.

The Group capitalises spend on development of new software and the delivery of innovative software. Management
exercises judgement in establishing both the technical feasibility of completing an intangible asset which can be sold,
and the degree of certainty that a market exists for the asset, or its output, based on feedback from existing and
petential customers. for the generation of future economic benefits. In addition, amortisation rates are based on
estimates of the useful economic lives and residual values of the assets involved.

b.  Key sources of estimation uncertainty
Impairment of goodwill and intangibles

Neatermining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units to
which goodwill has been allocated. The value in use calculation reguires the Group to estumate the future cush flows
expected to arise from the cash-genzrating units and the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the cash-generating unit, This includes the directors' best estimate on the likelihood of current deals in
negotiation not yet conclided. Consequently, the outcome of negotiations may vary materially from management
expectation, See Note 14 for more details,
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6. Revenue from contracts with customers

Year to 31 March 2020 Development Transactions Licenses Mam.lged Total
services
$000 $000 5000 5000 5000
Mexico 5,042 - 2.945 1.101 9,688
Europe 6027 193 10 109 939
(Other Americas 1,046 - 569 - 1,615
Asia 668 - 247 - 915
7.983 193 3771 1.210 13,157
Revenue recognised over a period 7,923 - - 1.210 9.133
Revenue recognised at a point in time 60 193 3,771 - 4,024
7983 193 3.771 1.210 13.157
Year to 31 March 2019
$000 5000 5000 $000 3000
Mexico 5,065 - 3.964 769 9,798
Curope 381 833 73 159 1.446
Other Americas 513 - 17 - 930
Asia 148 - - - 148
6,507 833 4.054 92¥ 12,322
Revenue recognised aver a period 6,182 - - 928 7,110
Revenue recognised at a point in time 325 833 4,054 - 5,212
6,507 833 4.054 92% 12,322

Licenses revenue are including both contract licenses and Saa$ revenue.

Contract balances

The following table provides information about contract assets (included as accrued income) and contract liabilities
(included as deferred income) from contracts with cuslomers:

Contract asscts (accrucd income}

Contract liabilities (deferred income)

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
00 $000
3478 1.891
1,785 1,019
3,263 2,910
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The movement in the contract assets and liabilinies during the year 1s set out below:

Contract assets

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
$'000 $'000
AL 1 April 1,891 989
Transfers in the period from contract assers to trade reecivables {1,891y {989)
Excess of tevenue recognised over cash (or rights to cash) 3478 1,891
recognised during the period
At 31 March 3.478 1.891

Contract liabilities

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
$'100 $'000

ALT April 1,419 1,360
Amounts included in conlract Habilities recognised (1,019 (1,360)
as revenue in the period
Cash received in advance of performance and not recognised 1.783 L.01g
as revenue during the period
At 31 March 1,783 1,019

Contract assets {("accrued income") and contract liabilities {'deferred income”) are included within 'Trade and other
receivables' and 'deferred income' respectively on the face of the Statement of Financial Position. They arise from
the Giroup's revenue contracts. where work has been performed in advance of invoicing customers. and where
revenue is received in advance of work performed. Cumulatively, payments received from customers at each
balance sheet date do not necessarily equate to the amount of revenue recognised on the contracts.
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7.  Scgmental reporting

Reportable segments

The chief operating decision maker for the Group is ultimately the board of directors. For financial and operational
management, the board considers the Group to be organised into two operating divisions based upon the varying
products and services provided by the Group — Digital TV & Broadcast and Mobile. The products and services
provided by each of these divisions are described in the Strategic Report. The segment headed other relates to

corporate overheads, asscts and liabilitics.

Segmental results (ur the year ended 31 March 2020 are as lollows:

March 2020

Revenue
Segmental profit/(loss}
(Adjusted EBITDA. scc note 8)

Gamn on disposal of Mirada Connect
Finance income

Finance expense

Depreciation

Amortisation

Foreign currency translation differences
Profit / (L.oss} before taxation

Digital TV &

Mobile Other Group

Broadcast
$000 $000 5000 $000
12,963 194 - 13,157
2,392 16 87 2,495
- 1,699 - 1,699
- - 65 65
- - (177 (177}
(358) (2) - (360)
(3,499) - - (3,499)
- - 52 52
(1465 1,113 27" 275

$0.087 million (2019; $0.100 million) disclosed as “Other” comprises employment, legal, accounting and other
central administrative costs incurred at a Mirada Ple level.
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The segmental results for the year ended 31 March 2019 are as follows:

March 2019

Revenue -
Segmental profit/(loss)
(Adjusted EBITDA, sec note &)

Finance income

Finance expense

Depreciation

Amortisation

Share-based payment charge
Profit / (Loss) before taxation

There is no material inter-segment revenue.

Digital TV &

Broadcast Muaohile Other Group
000 000 $000 $000
11.490 832 - 12,322
1,905 171 (1,262} 214

- - 141 141
- - (523} (523
(70) (10} - (8
(2,578) - - (3,57
- - {(70) (74)

(1.743) 161 (1,714) (3,296)

The Group has a major customer in the Digital TV and Broadcast scgment that generates revenucs amounting to 10%
or more of fotal revenue that account for $9.5 million of $13.16m total revenue. This is approximately 72% of all
revenue (2019: $9.7 million, out of S12.4m) of the total Group revenucs,

Segment assets and liabilities are reconciled to the Group's assets and liabilities as follows:

Digital TV - Broadeast & Mohile

Other:
Goodwill

Other lMnancial assets & liabilities
Total other

Tuotal Group assets and liabilitics

Assets  Liabilities Assets  Liabilities
2020 2020 2019 2019
000 5000 5000 5000

14488 9,328 11,360 7.675
5,008 - 5,924 -
490 196 653 279
5.588 196 6,577 279

20,076 9,524 17,937 7,954

Assets allocated to a segment consist primarily of operating assets such as property, plant and equipment,

intangible assets, goodwill and receivables.

Liabilities allocated to a segment comprise primarily trade payables and other operating habilities.
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Geographical disclosures

External revenue by

location of custimer

Toatal assets by

location of assets

2020 2019 2020 2019
$000 5000 5000 5000
Mexico 0,688 9,799 34 23
Lurope 939 1,445 20,042 17,914
Other Americas 1.615 930 - -
Asia 915 148 - -
13,157 12,322 20,076 17,937
Revenues by Products:
D'g[';“' ? &t Mobile D]g]';”' Td\' &t Mobile
roadcas 2020 roadcas 2019
2020 2019
$000 000 5000 5000
Development 7.983 - 6,508 -
Transactions 193 - 832
Licenscs 3771 - 4,054 -
Managed Services 1.210 - 928 -
12,964 193 11,490 832
8. Operating loss
This has been arrived at after charging:
2024 2019
$000 $000
Depreciation of owned assets (notes 15 and 16) 360 80
Amortisation of intangible asscts (note 14) 3,499 3,578
Operating lease charges 339 596

Total R&D expenditure capitalised as intangible assets amounts to $4.35m (2019: $3.12m}.

The total lease expense not subject 10 IFRS 16 Jor short-term as well as low-valuc Icases amounts to $0.339 (reler to

Note 15).

Analysis of auditors’ remuneration is as follows:
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Fees pavable 1o the companys  auditer for the audit of the

company's annual accounts

Audit of the account of subsidiaries

2020
$000

65

2019
5000

119

36

Reconciliation of operating profit for continuwing opcrations to adjusted carnings before interest, taxation,

depreciation and amortisation:

Operating loss
Depreciation
Amortisation

Operating prolit belore interest, laxation, depreciation,
amortisation, impairment (EBITDA)
Share-based payment charge

Adjusted EBITDA

9. Staff costs and employee information

Staff costs (including dircctors) comprise:
Wagcs and salarics

Social security costs

Other pension costs

Share based payments

Staff costs

2020 2019
5000 3000
(1,364) (2,914)
360 20
3.499 3.578
2,495 744
- 70
2,495 814
Group Group
2020 2019
$000 S000
9.037 8,577
2,066 1,796
4] 33
- 70
11,144 10,476

Contained within staff costs are amoeunts capitalised as intangible assets totalling 4,354 (2019: $3.115). with 56,790

(2019: $7.249) charged to administrative expenses.

The Group operates a defined contribution pension scheme for certain employees. No directors are members of this

scheme in both the current vear and the previous year.

The average numher of persons, meluding executive directors, employad by the Group during the year was:
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2020 2019

By activity
Office and management 12 12
Platform and development 152 142
Sales and marketing 9 9
173 163

The average number of persons. including exceutive directors, employed by the Company during the year was 9
(2019: 8) within the office and management team.

Directors and key management personnel remuneration

Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and
controlling the activitics of the Group, including the dircctors of the company listed on page 19. the Director of
Business Development and the Sales Director.

2020 2019
SO 000
Salaries and lees 1.325 1,037
Social Security cosls 67 63
Other henelits 46 44
Share-based pavments - 52
1,438 1,198

Directors remuneration

The emoluments received by the directors who served during the year were as follows:

2020 2019
50040 3000
Exccutive directors
Aggregate emoluments 820 669
Non-Executive directors
Aygregate emoluments 93 107
913 776

The directors' remuneration is disclosed in the Nominations and Remuneration Report on page 19.

Emaluments payable to the highest paid director arc as follows:
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2020 2019
$000 3000
Aggregate emoluments 319 273

There were no Cempany contributions to the pension scheme or benefits on behalf of the highest paid director,

10. Finance income

2020 2019

$000 3000

Interest receivad on bank deposits o5 141
63 141

11. Tinance expense

Finance expenses exclude all fees directly incurred to facilitate borrowing. These include professional foes paid to
bank arrangement fees and fees to secure required guarantees.

2020 2019
$og SO
Bank interest payable 122 221
[nterest on loans from related partics 41 302
[nterests on lease liabilities 14 -
177 523
12, Taxation
2020 2019
51000 $'000
Analysis of tax credit for the year
Current tax
UK tax for the current financial year (1) (113)
Forcign tax on income for the year (312 {71)
Total current tax (credit) {(313) (184)
Deferred tax
Origination and reversal of temporary
Adjustment in respect of prior periods - -
Total deferred tax {credit) - -
Total tax (credit) for the year {313) {184)

The tax assessed on the loss on ordinary activities for the peried differs from the standard rate of tax of 19%
(2019-19%)}. The differences are reconciled below:




Mirada ple
Notes to financial statements
Year ended 31 March 2020

Profit/{loss} belore taxalion

Loss on ordinary activities multiplicd by 19% {2019:
199%)

Losses carried forward/{utilised)

Witholding Taxes

Total current tax

Subtotal
Tax benefit from research and development expenditure
Foreign exchange

Total tax credit

Deferred Taxation

Deterred taxation amounts not recognised are as follows:

Losses

Research & Development Tax Credits,
Useable against future profits

Balance at the end of ihe ycar

The gross valuc of tax losses carried lorward at 31 March 2020 cquals $78.6 million (2019: $78.7 million).

13. Earnings per share
Year ended 31

2020 2019
$000 $000
275 (3.296)
52 (626)
(52) 626
112 321
112 321
112 321
(486) (462)
61 (43)
(313 (184)
Group Group
2020 2019
$000 $000
16,828 16,880
2,722 2.868
19550 19,748

Year ended 31

March 2020 March 2019

Total Total
Profil/(loss) for year $588,0007 SE3011,688)
Weighted average nuniber of shares 890.843,408 520,652,606
Basic loss per share 50.001 $(0.006)
Diluted loss per share 50.001 S(0.006)

After the cancellation of share premium approved by the General Meeting on 1) September 2019, the Company has
41,483 (2019: 4,697.166) potentially dilutive ordinary shares arising from share options issued to staff. However, in
2020 and 201 9 the profit/(loss) attributable to ordinary shareholders and weighted average number of ordinary shares
for the purpose of calculating the diluted earnings per ordinary share are identical to those used for basic earnings per
ordinary share, This is because the exercise of share options would have the effect of reducing the loss per ordinary

share and is therefore anti-dilutive.

Ln
ra
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14, [Intangible assets

Deferred Total
Completed i . )
development Intangible Goodwill
Technology
costs assets
$000 $000 $000 000

Cost
At ] April 2018 24,173 1.897 26,070 41,977
Additions 3116 11 3,127 -
Foreign exchange (2,252) (147} (2,399} (3,128)
At 31 March 2019 25,037 1,761 26,798 38,849
At ] April 2019 25,037 1,761 26,798 38.849
Additions 4314 5 4,319 -
Disposal - - - (688)
Foreign exchange {369) {69) (43%8) (1,690)
At 31 March 2020 28,982 1,697 30,679 30471
Accumulated amortisation
and impairment
At 1 April 2018 17,326 1,672 18,998 35,485
Provided during the year 3,455 123 3,578 -
Foreign exchange (1.502) {131 {1.633) (2,560}
At 31 March 2019 19.279 1,664 20,943 32,925
At ] Apnl 2019 19,279 1,664 201943 32,925
Provided during the year 3.455 44 3,499 -
Foreign exchange (328) (66) (394) (1,552)
At 31 March 2020 22,406 1,642 24,048 31,373
Net hook value
At 31 March 2020 6,570 55 6,631 5,098
At 31 March 2019 5,758 97 5,855 5,924
At31 March 2018 6.847 225 7.072 6,492

The key assumptions for the value in use caleulations are those regarding the discount rate applied, and the forecast
sales growth in a five year budget period approved by management. Management estimates discount rates using
pre-tax rates that reflect current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
CGUs. The cash flow forceast has been prepared with revenue being forecast per customer based on historical

performance of the business.

There is | CGUs that has been assessed for impairment, being Digital TV — Broadeast. The sales growth forecasts
are based on current contracts and management's estimate of revenues relating to opportunities that are currently
being pursued. CGUs defined 1s: “Digital TV — Broadeast™ which refers to the provision of software for the Digital
TV market. Major customers are Digital TV platforms, mostly Pay TV service
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providers and the Group provide the technology needed to facilitate the final user's interaction with the devices they
provide. This rate does not exceed the average long-term growth rate for the relevant markets. The rate used to
discount the forecast post-tax cash flows for the CGU is 10% {2019: 10%). A 2% increase/decrease to the discount
rate does not result in an impairment. A 10% decrease in the five years cash flow and terminal value forecast for both
CGUs does not result in an impairment. A perpetual rate of 2% (2019: 1.5%) has been used in the impairment
assessment, Even without perpetual rate, no impairment is required. If WACC had increased to 87%,. the CGU would
have impaired.

During the current and last financial periods, no impairment has been recognised. The split of goodwill by CGL is as

follows:
Group Group
2020 2019
5000 $000
Digital TV - Broadcast 5.008 5,199
Connect - 725
5,008 5.924

On 5 July 2019, the Group announced the sale of the wholly owned subsidiary Mirada Connect Ltd. to PuyByPhone
UK Limited (subsidiary of Volkswagen Financial Services, AG), for a consideration of $2.36 million (£2.12
million). As a result, the Group recognize 4 gain of $1.70 million as shown in the Consolidated Income Statement.
As a consequence of said disposal, the results of Mirada Connect Ltd are included as part of the consolidation scope
from 1 April 2019 to the effective date of disposal.

15. Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities

On 1 April 2019, the Group adopted IFRS 16 on Leases (refer to Note 3.a). The breakdown of changes in
right-of-usc asscts for the year ended as at 31 March 2020 is as follows:

Short term leasehold

improvements
$000

Cost
Balance at 31 March 2019 -
First application LFRS 16 (Note 3.a) 492
Balance at 1 April 2019 492
Additions 249
Foreign exchange (10}
Bulance at 31 March 2020 731
Amortisation
Balance at 1 April 2019 -
Provided during the year (249
Balance at 31 March 2020 (249)
Balance at 31 March 2019 -
Balance at | April 2019 492
Balance at 31 March 2020 482
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Of the total amount of rights-of-use assets at 31 March 2020, $0.301 m correspond to buildings and $0.181 m to
vehicles.

Regarding to the lease contracts, the Ciroup has a dispersed porttolio. The average duration ol property lease
conlracts is 2 years. and 3 years for vehicles.

The right-of-use has been defined according to the duration of the contract in force for each asset.
The liabilities recognized as 4 consequence of the IFRS 1€ first application as of 1 April 2019 (refer to Note 3.a) are

included in the heading "Lease liabilities". The breakdown of changes in lease liabilities for the year ending at 31
March 2020 is as follows:

5000
Balance at 31 March 2019 -
First application [FRS 16 (Note 3.a) 492
Balance at | April 2019 492
Additions 248
Payments of lease liabilities (256)
Finance expense (Note 11} 14
Foreign exchange (10)
Balance at 31 March 2020 488

The analysis of the contractual maturity date of the leasc liabilities, including the current interest, is as follows:

2020
000
Interest  Less than lto3  More than
Currency Total
Rate one year years 3 years
Lease liabilities EUR 3% 229 2l6 43 488
229 2l6 43 488

The average incremental discount rates for the main countries affected by this standard, used for calculating the
current value of the rights of use and lease liabilities recognised at the date of first-time application of IFRS 16 were
as follows:

Average rate Average rate
Between 1 and 3 years Maore than 3 years
$pain 3% 3%

As indicated in Note 3.a, the Group has chosen to not recognise in the balance sheet the lease liabilities und the
right-of-use asset corresponding to short term lease agreements and leases for low value assets, Thoss exceptions
have been recorded entirely under the heading of operating leases. The total lease expense not subject to [FRS 16 for
short-term as well as low-value leases amounts to $0.339 m (refer to Note 8).
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16, Property, plant and equipment

Cost

At 1 April 2018
Additions
Foreign exchange

At 31 March 2019

At 1 April 2019
Additions
Disposals
Foreign exchange

Al 31 March 2020

Depreciation

At 1 April 2018
Provided during the year
Foreign exchange

At 31 March 2019

At 1 April 2019
Provided during the year
Digposals

Foreign exchange

At 31 March 2020

Net book value
At 31 March 2020

At 31 March 2019

Office and Short term
computer leasehold Total
equipment improvements
$000 $000 $000
1.205 146 1,351
80 - 80
(08} (10) (108)
1.187 136 1,323
1.187 136 1,323
126 - 126
(30} (9) (39}
(36} {0) (42}
1,247 121 1,368
1.027 7 1.104
64 6 80
(78} (5) (83}
1.013 88 .101
1.013 88 .101
67 44 111
(24} (6) (30}
(35} (7) (42}
1.021 119 1.140
226 2 228
174 43 222
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17. Trade & other receivables

Group Group

2020 2019

3000 5000

Trade receivables 1,987 1.8R9
Other receivables 1,025 1,183
R&D tax credit 327 281
Contract assets 3478 1.891
Prepayments 149 177
0,966 5,421

Non current R&D tax credit 486 308
486 398

As of 31 March 2020, the Group has a shott-term reccivable with the Spanish Tax Agency amounting to $0.327m
(2019: $0.281m) regarding the FY 19 deductions tor technological innovation.

Furthermore, there is a long-term receivable of $0.486m (2019: $0.398im) related to the estimation of the deduction
for technological innovation generated in FY20.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables net of allowances are held in the fellowing currencies:

2020 2019

s000 5000
Sterling 402 105
US Dollars 1,487 1,691
Euro 98 93
Total 1,987 1,889

The fair values of trade and other receivables are the same as book values as credit risk has been addressed as part of
impairment provisioning and, due to the short terms nature of the amounts receivable, they are not subject to other
ongoing fluctuations in market rates.

Before accepting any new customer, the Group uses a credit approval process to assess the potential customer's credit
quality and defines credit limits by customer.
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Movement in allowance for doubtful debts:

2020 219
3000 $000

Balance at beginning of year
Utilised in year

Balance al the end of the year

In determining the recoverability of a trade reecivable, the Group considers any change in the credit guality of the
trade receivable from the date credit was initially granted up to the reporting date.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the fair value of each class of receivable set out above.

18. Trade & other payables

The fair values of trade and other payables are the same as book values as due (o the short lerms nature of the
amounts payable, they are not subject to other ongoing fluctuations in market rates.

Trade payables and accruals principally comprise amounts outstanding for trade purchases and ongoing costs. The
average credit period taken [or trade purchases is 46 days (2019: 37 days).

2020 2019

Joou S000

Trade pavables 342 253
Other payables K80 903
Other faxation and social security taxes 536 335
Accruals 261 468
Contract liabilities 1,785 L.OLS
3.804 2,977

Maturity analysis of the group financial liabilities, excluding other taxalion and social security and deferred income,
is as follows:

Group 2020 Group 2019

$000 $000

Up 1o 3 months 1,080 4414
3 to & months 86 1,035
6 12 months 317 125
1,483 1.624
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19, Loans and borrowings

2020 2019

$000 5000
Advances Drawn on invoice discounting facilitics 1.081 882
Bank loans 1,502 2.134
Other Loans 237 241
Related partics loans 7 -

2827 3.257
The borrowings are repayzble as follows:
Up to 3 months 2,132 2.289
3 to ¢ months 140 248
610 12 months 555 720
On demand or within one year 2,827 3,257

At 31 March 2020, the Group had $0.53 million in available credit lines not used (2019: $0.33 million) and $1,064
million in available inveice discounting tacilities not used (2019: S2.37 million), with a 3% interest rate in average
(2019: 3%).

The above bank loans are denominated in Euros and arc unsccured.

Interest-bearing bank loans are initially recorded at fair value less direct issue costs.

On 4 June 2019, the Company announced that the subsidiary Mirada [beria, S.A.U., had entered into a new
revolving eredit facility for up to €1.3 million {the “Facility”). The proceeds from the Facility are to be used
alongside Mirada's exisung debt financing facilities for general working capital purposes and capex of the Company,
including the implementation of customer contracts announced and in prospect.

The total amount withdrawn at 31 March 2020 was €1.1 million.

Dircetors estinate the fair value of the Group's borrowing to be consistent with its carrying value. There is no
material ditference between the value of the gross undiscounted cash flows and carrying amounts in the statement of
financial position.

20. Noo-current liabilities

2024 2019
S00¢ 5000
Interest bearing loans and borrowings:
Bank loans 228 494
Other loans 967 1.227
Related pattics loans 1.219 -
2405 T 1.721

Other loans relate to loans received by the Group's Spanish operation to assist in funding the continned development
of the Group's Digital TV products.

Capital risks have been analysed in the Director's report {page 10)
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Net Debt

Nct Debt is caleulated based on short term loans, long terms loans and cash and cash cquivalents:

2020 2019
SHH} Joou
Loans and berrowings - Curcent 2,827 3.257
Loans and berrowings - Nen Current 2.405 1.721
Cash (185) (1173
Net Debt 5.047 4.8461
~ =
Borrowings, including interest, are repayable as follows:
2020 2019
$000 $000
Bank loans
On demand or within one year 661 1,062
Between one and two years 171 272
Between Lwo and five years 87 239
919 1,573
Other loans
On demand or within onc year 1,103 1,346
Between one and two years 345 247
Between two and five years 470 674
Mare than 5 years 156 318
2,074 2,585
Related parties loans
On demand or within cne year 7 -
Between one and two years 1,210 -
1,217 -
Advances drawn on invoice discounting
On demand or within onc year 1,081 882
1.081 882
Total borrowings
On demand or within one year 2,851 3,290
Between one and two years 1,726 519
Between two and five years 557 914
More than 3 years 156 318
5,290 5,041

6}
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21, Retirement benefit schemes

The Group operates defined contribution pension schemes. The pension charge [or the period represents

contributions payable by the Group to the schemes and amounted to $40,769 (2019: $33,196).

At 31 March 2020, contributions amounting to $7,655 (2019: §7,440) were payable and included in other payables.

22. Financial instruments

Capital visk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maxinising the return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The capital structure
of the Group consists of debt, which includes the borrowings disclosed in Note 19 and 20, and equity attributable to
equity holders of the parent, comprising issued capital, reserves and retained eurnings as disclosed in the

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Fquity and Note 23,
Externally imposed capital requirement

The Group 1s not subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

Categories of financial instruments

Financial assets

Amortised cost:

- Trade and other reccivables, excluding prepayments
- Cash and cash equivalents

Financial liabilities

Amortised cost:

- Tradc and other payables®

- Loans and burrowings due within one yea

- Interest bearing loans and borrowings due after one year

* Excluding other taxation, social security and contract liahilities.

Financial risk management objectives

2020 2019
$000 $000
6.490 1,072
185 17
6.675 1,189
1,483 1,624
2,827 3,257
2,405 1.721
6,713 6,602

The Group moniters and manages the risks relating to the financial instruments held. These risks are discussed in

further detail below.

Marker risk

The Group's activities expose it primarily to the financial risks of changes in foreign currency exchange rates and
interest rates. The Group does not use lorward lorcign exchange contracts (o hedge exchange rate risk.
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Forcign currency risk management

The Group has undertaken certain transactions denominated in foreign currencies. Hence, exposures to exchange
rate fluctuations arise.

The majority of eash at bank is held in Sterling and Euro accounts. There are also trade balances in these currencies.
The Group is increasingly signing more sales contracts in US dollars and is currently investigating ways of reducing
the risk on any potential tuture fluctuations in the US dollar cxchange rate. Any forcign ¢xchange gains or losses on
trading activities are recognised in the consolidated income statement.

The company is aware that the UK's decision to leave the European Union may affect the intercompany trading
between the dilferent subsidiaries. We will adapt our internal policies accordingly il required. In the short term,
exchange rates are likely to increase the GBP denominated revenues. as the primary cash inflows for the Group are
based in US dollars. Brexit has not been considered 10 be as a principal risk due 10 the non-EU focussed customer
base.

The carrying amounts of the Group's malerial forgign currency denominaled monetary assets and monetary labilities
at the reporting date are as follows:

Liabilities Assets

2020 2019 20240 2019

$000 000 $004 $000
US Dollar deneminated assets and liabilities 1,487 1.691
Eura denominated assets and liabilities 5813 7.487 6,649 3,184

Entities trom United Kingdom have no balances denominated n Euro/USD.
Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

In fiscal years 2019 and 2020, the Company has used US Dollar as presentational cutrency. The lollowing lable
details the Group's sensitivity to a 20% increase and decrease in USD against the Euro and to a 20% increase and
deercase in USD against Sterling. The sensitivity analysis includes Eure and Sterling denominated monetary items
and adjusts their translation at the period end for a 20% change in the Euro/USD rate and for a 20% change in the
Sterling/USD rate at March 31, 2(H9 and March 31, 2020. A positive number below indicales an inerease in profit
and other equity where US Dollar strengthens against the relevant currency. For a weakening of US Dollar against
the relevant currency, there would be an equal and opposite impact on the profit and other cquity, and the balances
below would be negative. The sensitivities below are based on the exchange rates at the balance sheet used to
convert the asset or liability to US Dollar.

Profit and loss impact

p2x1] e
5000 000
[uro 1541} {533)
Sterling 314y (772}
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Interest rate risk management

At 31 March 2020, the Group was exposed to interest rate risk as the interest payable on some of the Group's loans
and borrowings are linked to Euribor, The Group's loans and borrowings where interest payable is linked to Euribor
include bank loans and development loans totalling $76,148. The remaining bank loans totlling 51,993.641 pay
fixed rates of interest.

Neither interesl rate swaps coniracts nor forward inlerest rale conlracts are used lo hedge any risks arising.

If interest rales changed by 1% (100 basis points) the profit and less impact would not be material to the Group's
results.

Credit risk management

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to
the Group. The Group faces exposure 1o credit risk on ils trade receivables and cash equivalents. The Group has
some exposure to credit risk from credit sales. It is the Group's policy to assess the credit risk of new customers
before entering into contracts. Historically, as Mirada's customers are mainly broadecasters and medium/large

telecommunication companies, bad debts across the Group have been low.

The risk of financial loss arising from detaults on trade receivables is mitigated by the Group using 4 credit approval
process to assess the potential customers’ credit quality and also establishes credit limits by customer. The limits and
credit scores attributed to customers is reviewed bi-annually however. the sales ledger is reviewed at least monthly 1o
ensure all recaivables are recoverable,

Please refer to Note 17 for further details on trade receivables. including analyses of bad debts, ageing and profile by
cuarrency.

The Group believes the credit risk on liquid funds, being cash and cash equivalents, to be limited because the
counterparties are banks with high-credit ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies. The table below
shows the balance of counterparties at the reporting date in excess of 10% of the overall balance, together with the
Standard and Poor's credit rating symbols.

2024 2020 2019 2019

% of overall

% of overall

Counterparty Rating cash & cash Carrying  cash & cash :?r::;?l:[tlg
equivalents amount equivalents
SO00 3000
Santander A 1.5% 3 4.9% 6
La Caixa BBB- 0.0% 0 0% -
BOVA A 5] 5 95 25.8% 30
Barclays A 28 0%, 53 02.5% 73
Ibercaja BB+ 0.4% 1 3.0% 4
Bankia BHB 6.6% 12 - -
Sabaccll BRD 3.3% 6 - -
Banamex BBB 6.4% 12 - -

Liguidity risk management

Liquidity risk arises from the Group's management of working capital and the finance charges and principal
repayments cn its debt instruments. It 1s the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting its tinancial
obligations as they fall due.
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The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrowing
facilities by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial
assets and liabilities. As part of this monitoring the Group ensures that the financial liabilities due to be paid can be
met by existing cash and cash equivalents, forecasted receipts from customers and borrowing facilities.

Tables showing the maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities are included in Notes 18, 19 and 20.

23. Share capital
A breakdown of the authorised and issued share capital in place as at 31 March 2020 and 2019 is as follows:

2020 2020 29 2019
Number $000 Number SO0t

Allotted, called up and Tully paid
Ordinary shares of £0.01 ¢ach 890,843,408 12015 R00,843 408 12.015

On 28 November 2017, the Company announced it had entered into agreements for the provision to the Company of
unsecured one-year loan facilities of up 10 an aggregate amount of $2.4 million. The facility had certain conditional
subscription rights in raspect of new ordinary shares of Lp each in the capital of the Company. The facility was
provided by Kaptungs Limited, Kronck Business S.A. and Minles Corporation Inc. This facility was converted into
share capital as announced on 29 Angust 2018, through the issue of 151,785,713 ordinary shares.

On 7 March 2018, the Company announced it had entered into a secured cne-year loan facility for up to $4.2
million. This facility was provided by Kaptungs Limited. This facility was converted into capital as announced on 4
October 2018 through the issue of 300 million ordinary shares.

On 5 October 2018, the Company announced it had raised £3 million before expenses. by way of a subscription of
300 million new Ordinary Shares at 1p per sharg by a substantial shargholder of the Company, Kaptungs Limited,

Kaptungs Limited is an investment company which is beneficially owned by Mr. Ernesto Luis Tinajero Flores and
has a lotal beneficial interest ol 776,879,163 Ordimary Shares in Mirada, which represents 87.21 per cent ol the
voting rights in the Company.

24. Reserves

Share premium
The amount subseribed for share capital in excess of nominal value.

On 21 January 2020, the Group anncunced the completion of the Share Premium account cancelation amounting to
$16 millions (£10 millions). The Share Premium reduction was performed in order to creats a new reserve against
which the Group have performed credit its profit and loss account included as part of the heading “other reserves™,

As at 31 March 2019, the amount credited to the Company's balance sheet as paid up share capilal was
£8,908.435. Accordingly, the proportion of the Company's accumulated losses to the aggregate of its share capital,
share premium and other reserves was approximaltely ©3.7%. In accordance with EU Regulation 651/2014 the
Company's overseas subsidiary, Mirada [beria SAU, would currently be restricted from obtaining certain types of
additional publicly [unded rescarch and development loans that are available in Spain [rom the Centre for the
Development of Industrial Technology on advantagecus commercial terms, unless the accumulated losses of the
Company ate less than 50% of the aggregate of ils lotal share capilal, share premium and other reserves. Therefore,
by cancelling the Company's share premium account and
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crediting such amount to the Company's balance sheet Mirada [beria SAU should then be able to improve its
position to access such publicly funded loans, should it be required, as its accumulated losses will then be less than
50% of its share capital and other reserves.

The Share Preminm Account Cancellation has not affected the voting or dividend rights of Shareholders and will not
affect the number of Ordinary Shares in issue or the nominal value per Ordinary Share.

Other Reserves - Foreign exchange reserve

This reserve relates to exchange differences arising on the translation of the balance sheet of the Group's foreign
operations at the closing rate and the translation of the income statement ot those operations at the average rate.

Other Reserves- Merger reserve

Under the provisions of $612 of the Companies Act 2006, the premium that arose on the shares issued as
consideration in the acquisition of Mirada lberia S A, lormally known as Fresh Inleraclive Technologies S.A, has
been taken to the merger reserve.

25, Share based payments

Equity settled share option scheme

On 20 December 2013 the Company granted a total of 5301,238 share options to certain employees and directors
through approved and unapproved share option schemes. The exercise price for these options is £3.10. The exercise
of these options is not subject to any performance criterion and they vest in three equal instalments on 1 January
2015, | February 2015 and | March 2016. If the options remain unexercised after a period of ten years from the date
of grant the options expire. The options are forfeited if the employee leaves before the options vest.

The directors granted options under this scheme are as follows:

No. of share

optiens
losé Gozalbo Sidro BIE.72%
losé Luis Viquer 631.464
Francis Coles 185,888

In prior periods the Company has granied sharc options to employees and directors through approved and
unapproved share option schemes. The exercise of options for all options grantad during the 12 months ended 31
March 2008 is subject to a performance criterion being satisfied. The exercise of options granted prior wo | January
2007 is not subject to any performance criterion. 1f the options remain unexercised after a period of ten years from
the date of grant. the options ¢xpire. The options are torfeiled if the employee leaves before the options vest.

In accordance with IFRS 2 the Group has elected not to apply IFRS 2 to options granted on or before 7 November
2002 or to options which had vested by 1 January 2006.

Details of the share options outstanding during the period for options issued since 22 June 2007 are as follows:
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2020 2020 29 2019

Weighted Weighted
Number of average  Number of average

share exercise share exercise

Counterparty options price options price
£ &)

Outstanding at the beginning of period 4,697,166 0.10 4,697,166 0.10
Lapsed during period (548.830) 0,10 - 0,10
100-1 Share consolidation 41,483 - - -
Qutstanding at the end of the period 41.483 0.10 4,697,166 0.10
FExercisable at the end of the period 41,483 0.10 4,697,166 0.10

The General Meeting held on 10 September 2019 approved a 100 to 1 share consolidation. The total outstanding
sharc options on 9 Scptember 2019 was 4,148,316 (4,697,166 at 30 Scptember 2018}, Therefore, as of 31 March
2020, the Company may issue up to 41.483 additional ordinary shares arising in connection with existing share
options granted to staff, management and dircctors.,

The options cutstanding at 31 March 2020 and at 31 March 2019 had an exercise price of £0.10.

The options outstanding at 31 March 2020 had a weighted average remaining contractual life of 1.4 years (2019: 2.4
years),

For the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group has recognised a toral expense of 30 (2019: $70.000) related 10
equity-settled share-based payment transactions.
The estimated tair values for determining this churge were calculated using the Black-Scholes option pricing model.

This produczs a fair value for each grant of options made and the fair value is then charged over the vesting period,
which 1s three vears.

26. Operating lease arrangements

On 1 April 2019, the Group adopted [FRS 16 on Leases (refor to Note 3.a). The Group has chosen to not recognisc in
the bulance sheet the lease labilities and the right-of-use asset corresponding to short term lease agreements and
leases for low value assets (refer to Note 4.k).

The total lease expense not subject 10 IFRS 16 for short-term as well as low-value leases amounts to $0.339 (refer to
Note 8).

At the reporting date, the Group had cutstanding commitments for future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leascs, which fall duc as follows:

2020 2019

$000 $000

Restated

Within one year 157 492
In second to fifth years inclusive 94 468
251 960

In the prior year financial statements, the commitment amounting US$ 398k relating to an “option 10 renew a lease
for 7 years” was mistakenly disclosed as a non-cancellable operating lease. This has resulted in restating prior year's
disclosure of Operating lease arrangements Note. This adjustment does not impact
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income or Consolidated Statement of Financial Position. Operating lease
payments represent rentals payable by the Group for its office properties. Leases of buildings are subject to rent
reviews at specified intervals and provide for the lessee to pay all insurance, maintenance and repair costs. Operating
lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for its office properties. Leases of buildings are subject to
rent reviews at specified intervals and provide for the leasee to pay all insurance. maintenance and repair costs.

27. Notes supporting cash flow statement

Cash and cash equivalents comprise:

2020 2019
So00 so00
Cash available on demand 183 17
Net cash increase/{decrease) in cash and cash equivzlents 68 (1.820)
Cash and cash cquivalents at beginning of year 117 1,937
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 185 117
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents are held in the following currencies:
2020 2019
$t0o S000
Sterling 53 74
Mexican Peso 12 -
Euro 120 43
Total 185 117

Reconciliation of liabilities from financing activities:
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2019 Cash Cash Non-cash changes 2020
5000  outflows inflows $000
Other Foreign
non-cash  exchange
movement  movement

Bank loans 2,628 (1,723) 877 - (52) 1.730
Other loans 1,468 (237) - - 27) 1.204
Related party loans - - 1,210 7 - 1.217
Advances drawn 882 (864} 1081 - (18) 1,081
on invoice discounting

Payment of principal - (242) - - - (242)
on lease liabilities

Interests on lease liabilities - (14) - - - (14}

Total liabilities tfrom

. - 4,978 (3,080) 3,168 7 9n 4,976
financing activities

Significant ron-cash transactions arc as follows:

2020 2019
5000 $000
Financing activities
Conversion of related party loans - 6.093

28. Related party transactions

On 4 June 2019, the Company announced that the subsidiary Mirada lberia, 8.A.U., had cntered inlo a new revolving
credit facility for up to €13 million ithe “Facility”). The Facility was provided by Leasa Spain, $.L.U. The praceeds
from the Facility arc to be used alongside Mirada's existing debt financing facilities for gencral working capital
purpeses and capex of the Company, including the implementation of custemer contracts announced and in prospect.

The total amount drawdown at 31 March 2020 was €1.1 million.

29. Events after the reporting date

On 11 March 2020, the World Health Organisation declared the coronavirus COVID-19 outbreak a pandemic, due to
its fast spread around the World, afier impacting more than 130 counfries. Most governments are taking constrain
measures to contain the spread, which include: isolation, confinement, quarantine and restrictions to free movement of
people, clesurs of public and private facilities, except for health and essential goods, border closures and substantial
recuction of air, sea, and land traffic.

This situation is affecting significantly the glebal economy, due to disruption or slowdown of supply chains and a
signilicant increasc in cconomic uncertainty, as shown by an increase of volatility in the price of asscts, cxchange
rates and a decrease in long term interest rates.

At the date of issuance of this report it is not possible to make a rcasonable cstimation of the current and futurc
consequences of this erisis on the company. The Company's Management will evaluate, during between | April 2020
and 31 March 2020, the impact of the matters previously described and those that could be identified in the future on
the financial position of the Company as at 31 March 2021.

On 21 May 2020, Mirada [beria, 5.A.1., has agreed an extension to the term of its €1.30 million credit facility granted
by Leasa Spain, S.L.U. The term of the Facility hus been extended by 12 months and now expires on 30 November
2021, although the Cempany retains the option to repay any drawn amounts garlier, The Board
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of Mirada considered it orudent to extend the Maturity Date in order to provide cashflow flexibility and bearing in
mind the glokal uncertainties presented by the COVID-19 pandemic.
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2020 019
Company number 03609752 Note $000 S00
Investments iv 10,430 10,991
Non-current asscts 10,430 10,991
Trade and other receivables % 437 649
Cash and cash equivalents 53 4
Current assets 490 653
Total assets 10,920 11,644
Trade and other pavables vi (1,744) (3,161)
Current liabilities (1,744) (3,161
Net current liabilities (1,254) (2,508)
Total assets less current labilities 9,176 5,483
Total liabilities (1,744) (3,161}
Nel assels 92,176 8,483
Issued share capital and reserves attributable
to equity holders of the company
Share capital ix 12,015 12,015
Share premium - 15,995
Ohher reserves 48 (1,630}
Accumulaled losses (3,687)  {17.897)
Equity 9.176 8.483

As permitted by section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, the Parent company's statement of Comprehensive Tncome has not
been included in these financial statements. The profit for the financial year for the parent company was $1.120,787 (2019 -
loss of $732,000),

These financial statements were approved and authorised for 1ssue on 15 July 2020.

Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors

José-Luis Vazquez
Chief Executive Officer

The notes on pages 70 to 77 form part of these financial statements.
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Share Share Foreign Accumulated
) . exchange Total
capital premium losses
reserves
5000 $000 $000 5000 $000
Balancc at | April 2019 12,015 15995  (1,630) (17,897) 8,483
Profit for the year - - - 1,121 1,121
Other comprehensive income
Movement in foreign exchange reserve - - 2478 - 2478
Tulal comprehensive profit fur the year - - 2,478 1,121 3,599
Transactions with owners
Share premium caneclation - (15,995) - 13,089 (2,906)
Balance at 31 March 2020 12,015 - 848 (3,687) 9,176
Foreign
Share Share Accumulated
K . exchange Total
capital premium losses
reserves
5000 $000 $000 000 $000
Balance at 31 March 2018 {(as previously restated) 2,261 15,760 (1,609) (17.,420) (1,008)
Prior year adjustement (Note i} - - - 185 185
Balance at 1 April 2018 {restated) 2,261 15,760 (1,609) (17,235) (823)
Loss for the year - - - {732) (732)
Other comprehensive income -
Moevement in [oreien exchange rescrve - - {21) - (21)
Total comprehensive loss for the year - - 21 (732) (753
Transactions with owners
Share-based payment - - - 0 0
Issuc of shares 3.806 - - - 3,806
Conversion of convertible loans inte shares 5,858 235 - - 6,003
Balance at 31 March 2019 12,015 15995  (1,630) (17.897) 8.483

The notes on pages 70 to 77 form part of these financial statements
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L

Accounting policies

Basis of accounting

The separate financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting
Standard 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework. Principal accounting policies for the company are consistent of those
for the group company which are disclosed in Note 4 of the group accounts, page 33, Furthzr polices considered in
the company financial statements are listed below.

Disclosure exemptions adopted

In preparing these financial statements the company has taken advantage of certain disclosure exemptions conferred
by FRS 101. Therefore, these financial statements do not include:

. cerlain comparative information as otherwise required by EU endorsed IFRS;

. certain disclosures regarding the company's capital;

. a staicment of cash Tows:

. the effect of future accounting standards not yet adopted;

. the disclosure of the remuneration of key management personnel; and

. disclosure of related party transactions with other wholly owned members of the groua.

In addition, and in accordance with FRS 101 further disclosure exemptions have been adopted because equivalent
disclosures are included in the consolidated financial statements of Mirada ple. These financial statements do not
include certain disclosures in respect of:

. Financial lnstruments (other than certain disclosures required as a result of recording financial instruments at
fair valuc); and

. Fair value measurcment {other than certain disclosures required as a result of recording financial instruments
at fair value).

New standards, amendments and IFRIC interpretations

TFRS 16 - Leases

This Standard replaces the following standards: (a) [AS 17 Lcases: (b} IFRIC 4 Determining Whether an
Arrangement Contains a Lease; (c) SIC-15 Operating Leases — Incentives; and SIC-27 Evaluating the Substance of
Transactions in the Legal Form of a Leasc.

IFRS 16 establishes that companies that are lessee in lease contracts will recognise in the consolidated balance sheet
the liabilities and assets of lease contracts (except short-term and low-value lease agreements). Furthermore, the
operating lease expense has been replaced by a charge for straight-line amortisation of right of use assets and an
interest expense on lease liabilities.

This standard has not introduced significant changes in the accounting for lease contracts by the lessor.

The Company previously classified leases as operating or finance leases under 1AS 17 (refer to note 26). With respect
to the leases classified as finance leascs in accordance with 1AS 17, the book value of the right of use asset and the
lease liability on the date of first-time application date will be the carrying amount of the lease asset and the lease
liability immediately prior to that date, measured in accordance with 1AS 17. With respect to those leascs, the lessee
will record the asset by right of use and the lease liability in accordance with this standard as of the date of first-time
application.

The Company has opted to apply the modified retrospective approach, without restating the comparative information
presented as at 31 March 2019 under the aforementioned standards. Under this option, the Group has calculated the
lease liability as the current value of the outstanding instalments on the contracts in force at the date of first-time
application determined on the basis of the incremental interest rates on the aforementioned date and has recognised
the value of the right-of-use asset for the same amount of the lease liability calculated at 1 April 2019.
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The average incremental discount rates for the main countries affected by this standard, used for caleulating the
current value of the rights of use and of the operating lease liabilities recognised at the date of first-time application of
IFRS 16 are detailed in note 15.

The right of usc and lcase liability were defined according to the original contract erm.

IFRS 16 establishes two exceptions for the lease recognition that included the low-value lease agreements (amount
equal or less than to $5 thousand) and short-term lease agreement (for a period equal or less of 12 months). For these
cases, the expenditures are recognised as expense during the term of the lease agreement, Group has taken advantage
of these 2 exceptions in determining ROU assets and Lease liability.

To calculate this impact, the Company has analysed, among other factors, the duration of the significant leases
considering whether the agreements can be erminated early or not and whether or not the durations can be

unilaterally extended by the lessee and, in both cases, the degree of certainty, which, 1 turn, depends on the expected
use of the assets located in the underlying properties leased.

An updated accounting policy has been sct owt in the Leascs policy below.

The impact of application of the standard is included in note 3.a.
IFRIC 23 - Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments
Amendments to IFRS 9 - Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation
Amendments v IAS 19 - Employee Benefits

Anannal Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015-2017 Cycle

New Standards, interpretations and amendments not yet effective

The Group expects to adopt the following standards, which have not been adopted early, as of 1 April 2020:

Amendments to IAS 1 and 145 8

Definition of materiality or with relative importance. This amendment clarifies the definition of materiality or relative
importance and how it should be applicd by introduction in the definition of guides that until aow have been
addressed in other parts of the [FRS Standards; improving the explanations that accompany the definition and
cnsuring that the definition of materiality or with relative importance is congistent throughout all [FRS Standards. The
Group will consider the new detinition of materiality and do not foresee significant impact in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statement.

Going concern

As disclosed in Note 4 from the consolidated financial statement, Directors have prepared a cash tlow forecast
covering a period extending beyond 12 months from the date of these financial statements. Different scenarios have
been considered including worse possible cases. The forecast contains certain assumptions about the performance of
the business, These assumptions are the directors' best estimate of the future development of the business, including
consideration of cash reserves required to support working capital and its new growth imitiatives. Based on this cash
flow forecasts, directors continue to adopt the going concern basis of acceunting in preparing the annual financial
staternents.

Investments in subsidiaries

[nvestments in subsidiaries are held at cost less accumulated impairment losses,

Right-of-use assets and Lease liabilities (policy applicable as from 1 April 2019)

On 1 April 2019, the Company adopted IFRS 16, on Leases. The Company opted to use the modified retrospective
approach on transition which involves applying the standard retroactively wiih the cumulative effect from the date of
first application. without restating the information presented as at 31 March 2019 under the aforementioned
standards.
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At the start of a contract, the Company evaluates whether it contains a lease. A contract is or contains a lease if it
grants the right to control the use of the asset identified for a period of time in exchange for a consideration. The
length of time during which the Company uses an asset includes consecutive and nen-consecutive periods of time.
The Company only re-assesses the conditions when a contract is amended.

In contracts containing one or more components which are lease-related and non-lease related. the Company assigns
the consideration set in the contract Lor cach lease component according 1o the sales price ol cach individual
lease-related component, and the aggregate individual price of the non-lease related components,

In contracts with onc or more lease and non-lease components, the Company deems all components as one sole lease
component.

The Company has also chosen to not recognise in the balance sheet the lease liabilities and the right-of-use asset
corresponding to short term lease agreements {leases for one vear or less) and leases for low value asscts (35
thousand or less). For this type of contracts, the Group recognises straight-line payments during the lease term.

Lessee accounting

Al the commencement of the lease term. the Company recognises a right-of-use asset and lease liability. The
right-of-use assct is composed of the amount of the lease Lability, any payment for the lease made on or prior to the
starting date. less any incentives received, the initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of the costs for
decommissioning or restoration 1o be incurred, as indicated in the accounting policy provisions.

The Company mcasures the lease liability as the present value of the Icase payments which are outstanding at the
commencement date. The Company discounts lease payments at the appropriate incremental interest rate, unless the
implicit interest rate of the lessor may be determined reliably.

The pending lease payments are comprised of fixed payments, less any incentive to be collected, the variable
payments that depend on an index or rate, initially appraised by the index or rate applicable on the starting date, the
amounts expected to be paid for residual value guarantees, the price of exercising the purchase option whose exercise
is reasonably certain and any compensation payments for contract termination, providing the term of the lzase reflects
the termination option.

The Company measures the right-of-use assets at cost. less depreciation and accrued impairment losses, adjusted by
any re-cstimate ol the Icase Labilily.

If the contract transfers ewnership of the assct to the Company at the end of the leasc term or if the right-of-use assct
includes the price of the purchase option, the depreciation criteria indicated in Note 4.j are applied from the lease
commencement date until the end of the useful lile of the assct. Otherwise, the Group depreciates the right-ol-use
asset from the commencement date until the date of the useful life of the right or the end of the lease term, whichever
is the carlicr.

The Company applies the criteria for impairment of non-current assets set out in note 4.1 to right-of-use assets.

The Company measures the lease liability increasing it by the interest accrued, decreasing it by the payments made
and re-assessing the carrving amount due to any amendments to the lease or to reflect any reviews of the n-substance
fixed lease payments.

The Company records any variable payments that were not included in the initial valuation of the liability in the
Consolidated Income Statement for the period in which the events resulting in payment were preduced.

The Company records any re-assessments of the liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset, until it is reduced
ta zero, and subscquently in the Consolidated Income Statement.

The Company re-assesscs the lease liability discounting the lease payments at an updated rate, it any change is made
to the lease term or any change in the expectation of the purchase option is being exercised on the underlying asset.

The Company re-ussesses the lease Liability if there is any change in the amounts expected to be paid for a residual
value guarantee or any change in the index or rate used for determining payments, including any change for reflecting
changes in market rents ence these have been reviewed.
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The Company recognises an amendment to the lease as 4 separate lease if it increases the scope of the lease by adding
one or more rights of use and the amount of consideration for the lease increases by an amount consistent with the
individual price for the increased scope and any adjustment to the individual price fo reflect the specific circumstances
of the contract.

If the amendment does not result in a separate lease. on the amendment date the Company assigns the consideration to
the amended conlract as indicated above, it re-determines the term ol the lease and re-estimales the value of the
liability discounting the revised payments at the revised interest rate. The Company writes down the carrying amount
of the right-of-use asset 1o reflect the partial or total end of the lease in any amendments that reduce the scope of the
lease and it records the profit or loss in income. For all other amendments, the Company adjusts the earrying amount
of the right-of-use asscl.

Taxation
The tax expense represents the sum of the current tax and deferred tax charges.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the period. Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported
in the inceme statement because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years
and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

If the Group considers it is likely that the tax authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment, the Group will
cstablish the taxable gain (loss), the tax bases, unuscd tax losses, unused tax credits or the lax rates consistent with
the tax treatment used or intended to be used in its income tax returns.

If the Group considers it unlikely that the tax authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment, the Group will retlect
the effect of the uncertainty to establish the taxable gain {loss), the tax bases, unused tax losses or credits or the
corresponding tax rates. The Group will reflect the cffect of the uncertainty for cach uncertain tax treatment by using
the most likely amount or the expected value of the probability weighted amounts.

Deferred tax 1s the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts ot assets
and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit
and 1s accounted for using the balance sheet liability method. Deterred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination} of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the tax profit
nor the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficicat taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled, or the
asset 15 realised. Deterred tax is cherged or credited in the income statement, except when it relates to items charged
or credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.

Delerred lax assels and labilities are olfsel when there is a legally enforceable right (o set ofT current tax assets

against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation aunthority and the
Group intends to settle its current tax assets anc liabilities on a net basis.
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il Deferred taxation

Deferred taxation provided in the financial statements is $nil {2019: $nil) and the amounts not recognised are as

follows:
2020 2019
5000 5000
Losses 24,118 25239
Balance at the end of the year 24,113 25239

The deferred fax asset has not been recognised on the grounds that there is insufficient evidence at the balance sheet
date that it will be recoverable. The asset would start to become potentially recoverable if, and to the extent that, the
company were to generate taxable income in the future,

jil. Intangible assets

Deferred
development costs
Cost 5000
AT April 2019 136
Foreign exchange {7
A1 31 March 2020 129

Depreciation
At 1 April 2019 136
Foreign exchange (7
AL 31 March 2020 129

Net book value
At 31 March 2020 -
Al 31 March 2019 -
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Investments

Caost

At 1 April 2019

Disposal of Mirada Connect
Foreign exchange

AL 31 March 2020

Amounts provided
At 1 April 2019
Foreign exchange

At 31 March 2020

Net book value
At 31 March 2020

At 31 March 2019

3000
19,210
{1
(979)

18,230
8219
(419)
7,300

10,430
10,991

On 5 July 2019, the Company announced the sale of Mirada Connect Ltd to PayByPhone UK Limited {part of

Volkswagen Financial Services).

Details of the investments in which the Company holds 20% or more of the nominal value of any class of share

capital are as follows:

Name of company
Digital Interactive
Television Group

Limited

Digital Impact (UK}
Limited*

Mirada [beria. S.A.

Mirada Mexico, 5.A.*

Holding

Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares

Crdinary shares

Y Vuoting rights

100%4

1004

100%

1004

* Held indirectly in Mirada Iberia S.A.

Country of

incorporation

UK

UK

Span

Mexico

Registered

address

68 Lombard Streel
Landon EC3V 9L)

68 Lombard Street
London EC3V 9L

Avda, de las
Aguilas 2B 28044
Madrid

Montes Urales
505-2° 11000
México DF

Nature of husiness

Dormant

Interactive TV
Services
Interactive TV

services

Interactive TV
services
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Y. Trade and other receivables
2020 2019
000 000
Trade receivables 402 -
Amounts owed by group undertakings - 605
(Hher receivables 9 8
Prepayments 26 36
437 649
vi. Trade and other payabhles
2020 2019
000 000
Trade payables 69 81
Amount owed to group undertakings 1.548 2,882
Other payables 5 67
Other taxation and social security laxes 14 40
Accruals 96 91
Contract liabilities 12 -
1.744 3,161

Maturity analysis of the company financial liabilitics, cxcluding other taxation and social sccurity and
deferred income, 1s as follows:

2020 2019

000 $000

Up 10 3 months 903 459
3 to 6 months 761 861
6 to 12 menths 54 1,801
1,718 3,121
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vii. Operating lease arrangements

2020 2019

$000 5000

Within one year 24 28
24 28

viii,  Share capital

A breakdown of the authorised and issued share capital in place as at 31 March 2020 and 2019 is as follows:

2020 2020 2019 209
Number FHo Number JiH

Allotted, called up and fully paid
Ordinary shares ol £0.01 each 890,843,408 12,015 890,843,408 12,015

On 28 November 2017, the Company announced it had eniered into agreements for the provision 1o the Company of
unsecured one-year loan facilities of up to an eggregate amount of $2.4 million. The facility had certain conditional
subscription rights in respeet of new ordinary shares of Lp cach n the capital of the Company. The facility was
provided by Kaptungs Limited, Kronck Business S.A. and Minles Corporation Inc. This facility was converted into
share capital as announced on 29 August 2018, through the issuc of 151,785,713 ordinary shares.

On 7 March 2018, the Company announced it had entered into a secured one-year loan facility tor up to $4.2 million.
This facility was provided by Kaptungs Limited. This facility was converted into capital as anncunced on 4 October
2018 through the issue of 300 million ordinary shares.

On 5 October 2018, the Company announced it had raised £3 million before expenses, by way of a subscription of
300 million new Ordinary Shares at 1p per share by a substantial shareholder of the Company, Kaptungs Limited.

Kaptungs Limited is an investment company which is beneficially owned by Mr. Erneste Luis ‘I'inajere Flotes and
has a total beneficial interest of 776,879,163 Ordinary Shares in Mirada, which represents 87.21 per cent of the
voting rights in the Company.

iX. Events after the reporting date

Sce Note 29 of the Group financial statements,
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